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About QPIC
Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company (QPIC) was established in 2004 with a total capital of one hundred and
ten million Kuwaiti Dinars distributed over a billion and one hundred million shares. The company was founded with
a clear direction from the government of Kuwait represented by the Petrochemical Industries Company (PIC) in order
to engage the private sector to participate within the Oil and Gas sectors and create local industries that add value
to our national economy and it was listed in Boursa Kuwait in 2007.
QPIC is one of the biggest private investors in the petrochemicals sector in Kuwait with total assets of around US$2.4
billion with a prime focus on the Energy and Industrial sectors, which we aspire to further grow.
Our Investment portfolio combines stakes of Kuwait’s largest petrochemical projects such as Equate Petrochemicals
(Equate), The Kuwait Olefins Company (TKOC) and Kuwait Aromatics Company (KARO). In addition to our significant
stakes being a majority shareholder in Saudia Dairy & Foodstuff Company (SADAFCO), United Oil Projects Company
(UOP), as well as National Petroleum Services Company (Napesco) and Inshaa Holding.
QPIC is part of Kuwait Investment Projects Company (KIPCO) group of companies. KIPCO Group is one of the
biggest holding companies in the Middle East and North Africa, with consolidated assets of US$ 34 billion as at 31
December 2018. The Group has significant ownership interests in over 60 companies operating across 24 countries.
The group’s main business sectors are financial services, media, real estate and manufacturing. Through its core
companies, subsidiaries and affiliates, KIPCO also has interests in the education and medical sectors.

Our Vision
To become a leading private holding company in the Energy, Petrochemical and Industrial sectors in Kuwait, and a
key player in the GCC and selected countries, consistently achieving shareholders expectations.

Our Mission
To achieve our vision through direct and indirect investments in new ventures and established companies, leveraging
our market/industry knowledge and innovative investment approaches to create a diversified and balanced risk–
return portfolio.

Chairman's
Statement
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Chairman's Statement

It is my pleasure to announce to you that QPIC was able to achieve
record performance and profits during the year, in fact the highest
since its inception, which only affirms the company’s ability—
thanks to its diversified investments portfolio—to withstand
various geopolitical challenges that the globe is currently facing
while maintaining the positive & sustainable momentum.
Supported by the distinctive performance of our petrochemical
& oilfield services during 2018, and especially of EQUATE Group,
in which our share of dividends amounted to KD 28.26 million,
QPIC was able to achieve the announced results of KD 45.33
million for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 in comparison

Dear shareholder,
On behalf of the board of Qurain
Petrochemical Industries Company
(QPIC), I am pleased to congratulate
you on the record results of your
company for this year, and to present
to you herewith our annual report and
overview of the achievements of the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.

to KD 35.20 million for the previous year, thus representing a %29
year on year (YoY) increase. Earnings per share (EPS) for the year
amounted to 43.64 fils versus 33.82 fils the preceeding year.
With respect to the above, I am pleased to announce that QPIC’s
Board recommends distributing cash dividends of 16 per cent
of the company’s paid-up capital, equivalent to 16 fils per share,
subject to the approval of the General Assembly and relevant
authorities.
Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
appreciation of our loyal shareholders. I would also like to extend
my gratitude to QPIC’s management and employees that worked
hard in achieving the announced results as well as our business
partners at the core investment companies.
We acknowledge with gratitude the relentless support provided by
all Kuwaiti governmental bodies, in particular Kuwait Petroleum
Corporation (KPC) and their entities, and every other entity that is
supporting Kuwait’s industrial sector.
With my best wishes,

Sheikh Mubarak Abdullah Al-Mubarak Al-Sabah
Chairman

Vice Chairman
& CEO
Statement
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Vice Chairman & CEO Statement

history. Earnings per share similarly increased by 29%, reaching
43.64 fils. Total assets grew by 9% to KD 731 million versus KD
672 million in the previous year.
Overall, QPIC’s core investments performance maintained its
positive momentum, supported by the favorable performance
of petrochemicals markets during 2018, particularly in reference
to our investments in EQUATE Group, in which QPIC’s share of
dividends amounted to KD 28.26 million, reflecting an increase of 38
per cent compared to the previous year, offsetting the anticipated
lower profitability contribution from Saudia Dairy & Foodstuff
Company (SADAFCO), as a result of the regional challenges the
Saudi consumer market is facing. Nevertheless, SADAFCO has

Dear shareholder,
I am delighted to present you the financial results
of Qurain Petrochemical Industrial Company
(QPIC) for the year-ended 31st March, 2019. I am
also pleased to inform you that all of the company’s
major core investments achieved solid results
during this financial year, which is reflected on
the company’s overall performance.

been able to maintain its market share and leading position in
Saudi Arabia.
In a nutshell, Business highlights of QPIC’s core investments can
be summarized into the following:

1.

EQUATE Group achieved a net income of US$ 1.56 billion
during 2018, 38% higher than last year, which was USD 1.12
billion.

2.

KARO reported a net income of USD 265 million, 84% higher
than the previous year.

3.

SADAFCO reported a net income SAR 218 million, which was
expected and it was lower than the previous year. It must be

I would also like to add that during the year QPIC management

noted that this result was achieved despite the fact that the

reviewed and assessed the best available investment opportunities

Saudi consumer market is facing challenges due to market

in line with the company’s long-term strategy, taking into account

shrinkage due to expats leaving the country and other factors.

the importance of diversifying investments to boost returns in the
petrochemical sectors, as well as of diversifying geographically, and
we expect our core investments to retain their positive momentum
and improve in the future, reinforced by our strong and diversified
portfolio of investments.
Business & Financial Highlights
Three of QPIC’s core investments—EQUATE Group, Kuwait
Aromatics (KARO) & National Petroleum Services Company
(NAPESCO)—have recorded the highest net income ever in their
history, enabling QPIC’s net income to reach KD 45.3 million and
being 29% higher than the net income of the previous year (KD 35.2
million), which is also the highest in the company’s 14-year-long

4.

NAPESCO recorded a net income of KD 11.8 million, 21%
higher than the previous year, which was KD10 million.

Board of
Directors
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Board of Directors
Sheikh Mubarak Abdullah Al-Mubarak Al-Sabah
Chairman
Sheikh Mubarak joined Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company
(QPIC)Board as a chairman since 2005. He has an extensive experience in several sectors within the investments and industrial sectors,
locally and internationally. He currently serves as the Vice-Chairman
of Action Group Holdings Company, He is also the founder and
chairman of Action Real Estate Company and Action hotels Company. He is also a board member on the boards of the Egyptian-Kuwaiti
Holding Company, and Equate Petrochemicals Company. Sheikh
Mubarak was commissioned as an Officer from the Royal Military
Academy Sandhurst in the United Kingdom, and served as an armored core officer in the Kuwait Armed Forces. He studied at Cambridge University where he received a Master of Philosophy in International Relations and has a BA (Hons) in Politics and Economics
from the University of Buckingham in the United Kingdom. He has
Received the Chevalier de la Légion d’Honneur, the highest French
order of merit and was also Honored as a Young Global Leaders
(YGL) 2009, by the World Economic Forum. He is also a member of
several international institutions and organizations specialized in international relations, defense studies, economic affairs and strategic
affairs.

Sadoun A. Ali
Vice Chairman & CEO
Mr. Ali joined QPIC in June 2012 as Vice-Chairman & Chief Executive
Officer. He has over 20 years of experience in Finance & Investments
and was previously employed by KIPCO Asset Management Co. in
January 2006 till June 2012 as Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer. In Addition to that, Mr. Ali was previously employed by Kuwait Projects Company (KIPCO) as part of the Executive Management-Head of Accounting & Financial Group, and Chief of Budget
(Mina Abdullah Refinery) in Kuwait National Petroleum Co. in the period from 1989-1997. At the moment, he sits on the board of several
local & regional banks, as well as investments companies and board
committees such as Burgan Bank, Bank of Baghdad & Advanced
Technology Company & the Chairman’s Club. He is also the Chairman of United Oil Projects (UOP) and Inshaa Holding. He also occupied several administrative, accounting and executive offices in
companies working in investment, banking and industrial sectors. He
holds a Bachelor of Science in Financial Services Management from
the University of Ashland, USA.
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Board of Directors
Tariq M. Abdulsalam
Board Member

Mr. Abdulsalam joined QPIC Board in 2012, witnessing an extensive
experience in investments within several sectors and for a period
exceeding 20 years and among the KIPCO Group. He currently holds
the position of CEO of Investments within KIPCO, which he first
joined in 1992 and till 1996. In 1999, he became the General Manager of KAMCO. In 2006, he joined the United Real Estate Company
(URC) as CEO and in 2010 became the Chairman of URC. He was
Chairman of Burgan Bank from 2007 to 2010 and has held Board
positions at United Gulf Holding Company, Kuwait Bahrain Insurance
Company, Gulf Insurance Company and Saudia Dairy & Foodstuff
Company (SADAFCO). He currently sits on the board of United Real
Estate company, Jordan Kuwait Bank, KAMCO Investments, and he
is also the vice-chairman of North Africa Holding Company. He holds
a BSc in Accounting from Kuwait University.
Abdullah S. AlOtaibi
Board Member
Mr. Al-Otaibi joined QPIC Board in 2009. He holds a wide experience
in several industries as well as project management. He currently
holds several executive positions in local and regional entities including being the deputy General Manager for Qarooh Project Management Company, CEO of National Consumer Holding Company,
General Manager of National Paper Products Company and Saudi
Kuwaiti Carton Company. He is also a Board member of Oman International Company for Urban Development & Investment. He also
held several administrative and executive positions in several institutions, working in various fields including consulting and real estate.

Atallah R. Al-Mutairi
Board Member (independent)
Mr. Al-Mutairi joined QPIC Board in 2009. He holds an extensive experience in Investments & Petrochemicals. He is currently present on
the board of several local and regional companies including being
the chairman of BIG Investment Group and a board member of Triple-E Holding Company. Mr. Al-Mutairi has held various leadership
positions since 1997 in institutions working in the field of banking,
investment and insurance. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting from the Faculty of Commerce, Economics and Political Science
at Kuwait University.

Executive
Management
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Executive Management

Sadoun A. Ali
Vice Chairman and CEO

Mr. Ali joined QPIC in June 2012 as

ment, he sits on the board of several local

Vice-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer.

& regional banks, as well as investments

He has over 20 years of experience in Fi-

companies and board committees such

nance & Investments and was previously

as Burgan Bank, Bank of Baghdad & Ad-

employed by KIPCO Asset Management

vanced Technology Company & the Chair-

Co. in January 2006 till June 2012 as Man-

man’s Club. He is also the Chairman of

aging Director & Chief Executive Officer.

United Oil Projects (UOP) and Inshaa Hold-

In Addition to that, Mr. Ali was previously

ing. He also occupied several administra-

employed by Kuwait Projects Company

tive, accounting and executive offices in

(KIPCO) as part of the Executive Man-

companies working in investment, banking

agement-Head of Accounting & Financial

and industrial sectors. He holds a Bachelor

Group, and Chief of Budget (Mina Abdullah

of Science in Financial Services Manage-

Refinery) in Kuwait National Petroleum Co.

ment from the University of Ashland, USA.

in the period from 1989-1997. At the mo-

Mr. Akbar joined QPIC in 2008. He man-

He is a member of many Executive,

companies’ infrastructure, acquisitions,

Board Committees in the GCC and the

ages the development of new projects,
and strategies through his strength in

team building, leadership, business

Auditing and Business Development
Middle East region.

development and communication. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in

Industrial Engineering from University of
Miami, Florida, USA.

He has previously worked for Indepen-

dent Petroleum Group, Gulf Investment

Fuad A. Akbar
Chief Projects Officer

Corporation, and the Public Authority for
Assessment of Compensations (PAAC).

Mr. Khalfay joined QPIC in September

was with Ernst & Young, Kuwait, Kuwait

experience in the field of which 26

Kuwait, Ernst & Young – Mumbai in

2005. He has more than thirty years’
years has been in the Oil & Gas in-

dustry. He heads the Finance function

various positions.

in QPIC covering Strategy, Business

He holds a Degree in Commerce and

ing, Tax and Treasury functions. Prior

and is a Chartered Accountant and an

Planning, Accounting, Costing, Budgetto joining QPIC, he worked for Kuwait

Foreign Petroleum Exploration Company (KUFPEC) for fifteen years where he

headed various aspects of Finance. He

Tanweer A. Khalfay
Chief Financial Officer

International Investment Company,

Law from University of Bombay, India
associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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Mr. Zacharia joined QPIC in Septem-

He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Com-

aging and monitoring the company’s

Associate member of the Institute of

ber 2012 and is responsible for manInvestments. He has over 20 years of
experience in the field of Finance & In-

vestments and was previously Head of
Business Development at United Indus-

merce from Calcutta University, is an

Chartered Accountants of India and

a Certified Management Accountant,
USA.

tries Co. Prior to that he has held po-

sitions with Alghanim Industries, Kuwait
and ICI India Ltd.

Mickey Zacharia
Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Al Masqati joined QPIC in June

He was also an Investment Manager in

Company. He manages the company’s

ment Company, Senior Engineer- Proj-

2012 transferring from United Industries
HR & Admin. Department, as well as

assists in evaluation of new projects /
investments as a Senior Investment

Manager. Prior to Joining QPIC, Mr. Al
Masqati held the position of a Senior In-

vestment Manager in United Industries
Company since 2006.

the Projects Department at Gulf Investects Evaluation at The Public Authority

of Industry, General Manager at Middle

East Communications, and Production
Manager at Carpets Industries.

Mr. Al Masqati holds BSc in Industrial
Engineering from Oklahoma University
– USA in 1987.

Ahmad A. Al-Masqati
Head of HR & Administration
Mr. Omeiri joined QPIC in 2015 as Head

Mr. Omeiri has represented the Group in

perience including 13 years within the

Vice Chairman of Amaken United Real

of Internal Audit. He has 30 years of exKIPCO group. He has extensive expe-

rience in the field of internal auditing,

Estate Company.

risk management and corporate gov-

Mr. Omeiri also worked with several

roles.

holds a Bachelor degree in Business

ernance in addition to other managerial

He is responsible for handling the audit activities pertaining to the industrial
sector within the Group.

Ammar G. Omeiri
Cheif Audit Executive

several boards, and he is currently the

local and international companies. He
Management & Economy from Amer-

ican International University – Major in
Financial Management & Accounting London 1986.

QPIC
Milestones
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Financial Highlights of The Year
34.94

35.20

45.30

33.58

33.82

43.64

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

Net Profit KD million

Earning Per Share Fils

85.82

90.08

91.48

354.86

386.83

436.54

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

Investment in Associates KD Million

Shareholders' Equity KD Million

619.76

671.67

731.13

341

372

421

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

Total Assets KD Million

Book Value Fils
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2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

31.35

24.71

34.94

35.20

45.3

10

10

11

14

16

Capital

109.92

109.92

109.92

109.92

109.92

Shareholders’ Equity

325.40

314.20

354.86

386.83

436.54

Liquid Funds

43.372

51.354

96.18

118.66

148.84

-

-

-

2.21

7.81

204.83

180.39

198.82

209.85

223.323

71.71

81.61

85.82

90.08

91.48

Goodwill & intangible assets

108.11

106.85

128.74

127.98

126.58

Property, Plant & Equipments

69.89

68.88

79.54

91.87

105.36

527.97

521.47

619.76

671.67

731.13

310

302

341

372

421

Earning per share (in fils)

29.80

23.63

33.58

33.82

43.64

Return on Average Assets

7.03%

4.71%

6.12%

5.45%

6.46%

Return on Average Equity

9.99%

7.73%

10.44%

9.49%

11.00%

Equity/Total Assets

61.63%

60.25%

57.26%

57.59%

59.71%

Debt/Equity

21.84%

20.92%

21.59%

20.31%

15.68%

Investments/Total assets

72.85%

70.73%

66.70%

63.71%

60.37%

Liquid assets/Total assets

8.21%

9.85%

15.52%

17.67%

20.36%

Loan

71.08

65.72

76.60

78.58

68.43

Income Statement Highlights (KD Million)
Net profit
Dividend Per share (in fils)

Financial Statement Highlights (KD Million)

Financial Assets at FVPL
Available for sale
Investment in associates

Total Assets
Book Value (in fils)
Profitability

Capital

Liquidity & Business Indicators

Investment
Portfolio
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EQUATE GROUP

The EQUATE Group includes EQUATE Petrochemical Company (EQUATE), The
Kuwait Olefins Company (TKOC), as well as a number of subsidiaries such as
MEGlobal and Equipolymers. Their products are marketed throughout Asia,
the Americas, Europe, the Middle East and Africa.
The EQUATE Group is a global producer of petrochemicals and the world’s
second largest producer of ethylene glycol (EG). The Group owns and operates
industrial complexes in Kuwait, North America and Europe that annually
produce over 6 million tons of ethylene, EG, polyethylene (PE), polyethylene
terephthalate (PET), styrene monomer (SM), paraxylene (PX), heavy aromatics
(HA) and benzene (BZ).

Employing more than 1,500 people worldwide, the EQUATE Group is

In 2016, EQUATE Group reached another milestone by being the

a leading enterprise that pursues sustainability wherever it operates

first Kuwait-headquartered petrochemical entity to establish an

through partnerships in fields that include the environment,

industrial complex in the USA and the first Middle East-based

economy and society.

organization to benefit from USA shale gas sources. Located in
Freeport, Texas, the new facility – to be completed during 2019 – will

EQUATE story begun when it was established in 1995 as Kuwait’s

increase EQUATE’s EG capacity by 750,000 metric tons annually

first international petrochemical joint venture (JV) and a global

(MTA) and enhance EQUATE’s global presence to meet customer

producer of petrochemicals providing reliable services and

needs. EQUATE also became the first Kuwait-based company to

solutions, enabling global customers and stakeholders to grow

issue 144A transaction bonds that are tradable in the USA at a

and attain the success they seek.

value of $2.25 billion.

In 2004, TKOC was established as the second international

The bond issuance was considered the largest ever in Kuwait’s

petrochemical JV after, with the exact same shareholders of

history and the Arabian Gulf’s largest bond issuance since 2014.

EQUATE. TKOC was built to continue EQUATE’s success in

This is following EQUATE’s securing investment grade ratings by

developing the presence of Kuwait’s petrochemical industry

S&P (BBB+) and Moody’s (Baa2), two of the largest independent

around the world. TKOC is currently managed and operated under

rating agencies.

the umbrella of the EQUATE Group and commenced production
in August 2008.

9%
6%

In 2015, EQUATE acquired MEGlobal, a world leader in the
manufacture and marketing of monoethylene glycol (MEG) and
diethylene glycol (DEG) for a total consideration of US$ 3.2
billion. Further to the acquisition, EQUATE became the world’s

QURAIN
PETROCHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES
COMPANY

second largest producer of EG. The combined entity benefits from

EQUATE
Ownership

significant economies of scale with a larger and more diversified
distribution platform through Kuwait, Germany, Canada, and the
United States.
IT also provides an optimized cost structure with multiple points
of access to feedstock from sources in North America and the
Middle East with improved operational efficiency.

BOUBYAN
PETROCHEMICAL
COMPANY

42.5%
DOW
CHEMICAL

42.5%
PETROCHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES
COMPANY
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EQUATE is also making a significant economic contribution to the Kuwaiti economy and the global petrochemical industry. Ethylenebased products from EQUATE now account for over 60% of Kuwait’s export value from non-oil sources. By spending over $2 billion
annually in several fields, EQUATE also plays a positive role in local and global business sectors. Since commencing its operations
in 1997, EQUATE has contributed significantly to the growth of the Kuwaiti plastics industry by over 450%.

Polyethylene
A basic petrochemical substance used to manufacture packaging materials, bags, containers,
pipes and children toys. EQUATE’s PE product portfolio includes LLDPE C4 Film, LLDPE
C6, HDPE film, and HDPE blow molding grades. It’s shatter-free and safety features make
it an ideal choice for kitchenware, which offers a practical alternative to glass and ceramic
dishes. Its moisture resistance and extended shelf-life advantages make it critical for food
preservation and perishables’ freshness when used to store food and beverages. Its childproof and chemical resistance make it the best solution for plastic containers holding

hazardous household products such as bleach, ammonia and other powerful cleaners.
Its ability to withstand rigors of shipping and durability make it the number one choice
for packaging and plastic containers, which provide good storage solutions at home
and in the office.

Industrial Complexes
Canada, Germany, Kuwait & USA
Offices
Brazil, Canada, China, Germany,

PE uses & application in Flexible & Food Packaging/Containers, Industrial Piping,
Agriculture Film, Household & Industrial Cleaning (HIC).

Italy, Kuwait, Mexico, Singapore,
UAE & USA

Ethylene Glycol (EG)
Ethylene glycol is a chemical commonly used in many commercial and
industrial applications including antifreeze and coolant. EG helps keep
your car’s engine from freezing in the winter and acts as a coolant to reduce
overheating in the summer. Other important uses of EG include heat transfer
fluids used as industrial coolants for gas compressors, heating, ventilating,
and air-conditioning systems, and ice skating rinks. Ethylene glycol also is
used as a raw material in the production of a wide range of products including
polyester fibers for clothes, upholstery, carpet and pillows, well as polyethylene
terephthalate (PET) resin used in packaging film and bottles. Many of these
products are energy saving and cost efficient as well as recyclable.

Production Capacities (MTA)
Product

EQUATE

TKOC

MEGlobal

TOTAL

Ethylene

850,000

850,000

-

1.7 million

Polyethylene

1 million

-

-

1 million

Ethylene Glycol

550,000

600,000

2.1* million

3.24 million

*Includes 750 KMT that is still under construction
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PETROCHEMICALS
INDUSTRIES
COMPANY

20%

20%

KUWAIT AROMATICS (KARO)

QURAIN
PETROCHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES
COMPANY

KARO was established in 2004 as
a Kuwaiti Shareholding Company
with a paid-up capital of KD 250
million, as the first public private
joint venture in a world class

KARO
Ownership

petrochemical complex between
Kuwait Petroleum Corporation
(KPC) subsidiaries and QPIC.
60%

KUWAIT
NATIONAL
PETROLEUM
COMPANY

KARO has two main subsidiaries that produce the following products

Paraxylene
Paraxylene is the main ingredient to manufacture polyethylene terephthalate (PET) polyesters,
which is a kind of plastic used in bottles. Other PET uses include: containers for toiletries,
cosmetics and other consumer products; fabrics for curtains, upholstery, and clothing; films
for x-rays, magnetic tapes, photographic film and electrical insulation; and packaging for
boil-in bags, processed meats, shrink films and blister packs.

Stylene Monomer
A Petrochemical Substance that is used in manufacturing a variety of plastics such as electrical
and electronic appliances, packaging material, insulation, automotive parts and much more,
with majority of manufacturers convert it into Polystyrene. Polystyrene is a versatile plastic
used to make a wide variety of consumer products. As a hard, solid plastic, it is often used in
products that require clarity, such as food packaging and laboratory ware. When combined
with various colorants, additives or other plastics, polystyrene is used to make appliances,
electronics, automobile parts, toys, gardening pots and equipment and more.

Benzene
Benzene is primarily used as a feedstock, or raw material, to make other industrial chemicals,
such as ethylbenzene, cumene and cyclohexane. Benzene is also used as a solvent in the
chemical and pharmaceutical industries. Benzene is used to make other chemicals that are
used to manufacture of a variety of materials and plastics such as polystyrene, and nylon.
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KARO has two main subsidiaries

Kuwait Paraxylene Production
Company

The Kuwait Styrene Company

KPPC was established in 2006 as a shareholding com-

“Styrene Monomer” in the State of Kuwait. TKSC was founded

company commenced its commercial production in

commercial production in 2009.

produces Paraxylene, Benzene, and Heavy Aromatics

TKSC is supported by its geographical diversification and

TKSC is the first of its kind and is the sole manufacturer of
in 2004 with a capital of US$140 million. TKSC started its

pany with an authorized capital of KD 250 million. The
2010, buys its feedstock (Naphtha) from KNPC, and
to be exported to selected international markets.

exposure along various countries in the Middle East, Africa,
Asia and Europe despite of its young age, enabled by its

KPPC provides The Kuwait Styrene Company (TKSC)

competitive advantage, being in the GCC region, in terms of

with Benzene, the main feedstock to manufacture

operating costs, shipping and the use of advanced industrial

Styrene Monomer, while other production derivatives are

technology.

redirected back to KNPC.

KPPC Ownership
100% KARO

DOW
CHEMICAL

TKSC
Ownership

42.5%

Production Capacities (KMT)
Product

Subsidiary

Capacity

Benzene (BZ)

KPPC

393

Paraxylene (PX)

KPPC

829

Styrene Monomer

TKSC

450

57.5%

KARO
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SAUDIA DAIRY AND
FOODSTUFF COMPANY
(SADAFCO)

The story of SADAFCO began on 21st April 1976 when a joint venture between
three dairy companies in Jeddah, Madinah and Dammam was formed between
Saudi, Kuwaiti and European businessmen and the Company began production
with Saudia Milk at the Jeddah Factory in 1977.
Ten years later the European partners sold their shares to Saudi and Kuwaiti
shareholders and in 1990 the three dairy companies merged into one to
officially form SADAFCO. An initial public offering (IPO) on 23rd May 2005
led to the Company’s listing on the Saudi Arabian Stock Exchange, Tadawul.
In 2016, the Company celebrated its 40th anniversary.

From producing long life milk initially, the Company has diversified
its product portfolio offering various food and beverage items.
During this period, SADAFCO has maintained its position as a
market leader in Long Life Milk, Tomato Paste and Ice Cream in
Saudi Arabia.
Today, SADAFCO is a leading, world-class, Saudi Arabia based
company whose activities include local production, importation,
distribution and marketing of a wide range of food and beverage
products. The portfolio includes dairy products, ice cream, tomato
paste, snacks, drinks and other foodstuff items.
The Company operates two factories in Jeddah and one in
Dammam. All these factories have highest safety and environment
standards. All three SADAFCO factories remain certified with
ISO22000:2005 (for Food Safety), ISO14001:2004 (for Environment)
and OHSAS 18001:2007 (for Occupational Health & Safety).
Products & distribution
SADAFCO’s three factories produce plain and flavored milk, plain
and flavored Laban, soy milk, evaporated milk, date milk and
thick cream. The Jeddah Ice Cream Factory produces a variety of
different ice cream lines. The Dammam Factory produces tomato
paste, feta cheese, crispy snacks, Arabic Coffee, Juices, flavored
sparkling water and still water.
SADAFCO has in its reach of over 23,500 ambient customers and
SADAFCO also sources products produced by third party

18,500 customers of frozen products through a network of nearly

manufacturers, which include french fries, butter, triangle cheese,

500 sales routes. These routes are serviced by temperature-

ketchup, instant milk powder and tinned sterilized cream.

controlled vehicles, allowing the company to distribute its portfolio
from distribution warehouses to customers while always assuring
quality even in harsh climatic conditions.
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40.1%

OTHERS

48.1%

SADAFCO
Ownership
11.7%

QURAIN
PETROCHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES
COMPANY

AL-SAMEH
TRADING CO. LTD.

Ownership%

Asset Class

Name of Company

Country

100%

Subsidiary

SADAFCO Jordan Foodstuff Company LLC

Jordan

100%

Subsidiary

SADAFCO Bahrain Company (SPC)

Bahrain

100%

Subsidiary

SADAFCO Poland sp.

Poland

76%

Subsidiary

Mlekoma sp Z.O.O

Poland

75%

Subsidiary

SADAFCO Qatar Company (LLC)

Qatar

49%

Subsidiary

SADAFCO Kuwait Foodstuff Company

Kuwait
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UNITED OIL PROJECTS (UOP)

UOP was incorporated in the early eighties under the name of Kuwait
Chemical Manufacturing Company (KCMC), interpreting the pioneer vision
of its founders to meet both local and international market requirements for
specialized chemicals.
In 2005, the company’s management adopted a reformed strategy for the
development of its activities to adroitly meet and accommodate the frequent
economic transformations and developments, as well as to foster its returns
through seizing available investment opportunities in the energy sector, which
has witnessed a profound growth during the years.

UOP focuses on specialized projects in the Energy, Oil & Gas and Petrochemical sectors through its direct investment in United
Precision Drilling Company (UPDC) - a joint venture in partnership with Weatherford International Company. The Company also owns
a significant share in Al-Khorayef Company for sale, maintenance & repair of oil production equipment L.L.C (AKC), a subsidiary of
Saudi based Al-Khorayef Group. This is in addition to other strategic companies which are international market majors in these sectors.
The Company’s Chemical Division is a key producer of polymers, which are used in the manufacture of coatings and glass reinforced
products, establishing a local and international presence under the brand name KCMC and becoming the largest resins supplier in
Kuwait. UOP is certified to ISO9001:2008 (Quality Management System) and ISO14001:2004 (Environmental Management System)
Standards.

QURAIN
PETROCHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES
COMPANY

48.2%

UOP
Ownership

51.8%

OTHERS

Associates & Subsidiaries
Ownership%

Asset Class

Name of Company

48%

Associate

United Precision Drilling Company (UPDC)

Kuwait

25%

Associate

Al-Khorayef United Holding Company (AKUH)

Kuwait

Production Capacities (tpa)
Product

Capacity

Hydroxy and thermoplastic acrylics resin

5,000

Polyester resin

4,000

Country
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UOP Associate Companies

United Precision Drilling Company (UPDC)
UPDC is a Joint Venture Company, established since 2005, with majority
share-holding held between United Oil Projects & Weather ford. The Joint
Venture caters to the Drilling Business requirement in the Kuwait market,
both onshore & offshore, with the objective of building the largest, most
technically and most highly regarded Drilling organization in Kuwait. Situated in the heart of Kuwait’s oil region in Al-Ahmadi, UPDC services Oil &
Gas wells on a contractual basis. Main clients include Kuwait Oil Company
& other Joint Operations.

Al-Khorayef United Holding Company (AKUH)
UOP’s 25% acquired 25% shareholding in Al-Khorayef United Holding
(AKUH) in 2007, while AKUH owns 100% of Al Khorayef Company for
Supply, Maintenance, & Repair of Oil Production Equipment LLC, Kuwait.
Al-Khorayef Company for Sale, Maintenance, & Repair of Oil Production
Equipment LLC sells maintains and repairs oil production equipment.
From inception, the company has offered pumping services to the state
owned upstream company Kuwait Oil Company, the Joint Operation in
Wafra and the Ministry of Electricity and Water.
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NATIONAL PETROLEUM
SERVICES COMPANY
(NAPESCO)

NAPESCO was founded in 1993 as a private company offering pumping services
to the Kuwait Energy Sector. NAPESCO has established itself as a leading
provider of Upstream Oilfield Services including Cementing, Stimulation,
Coiled Tubing, Nitrogen, and Downhole Service Tools.
In 2001 the company began offering Environmental Services and today
maintains a leading position within the Gulf region as an in-house provider of
Environmental Monitoring and Analytical Laboratory Services, Consultancy
Services and Waste Management Services.

Since 2003 NAPESCO has been a publicly traded company listed

QHSE (Quality Health Safety Environment)

on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. In 2006 the company expanded

NAPESCO endeavors to lead the industry in QHSE implementation

its business operations with the region through additional capital

and performance through having a fully integrated function of

investments, facility expansion, further diversification of business

our corporate strategy and it is continuously implemented in the

activities and the start of International Operations.

management of its business activities.

NAPESCO is proud to employ a fulltime workforce in excess of five

Continuous improvement is the main focus of NAPESCO QHSE

hundred employees representing twenty-eight different nationalities

efforts and as a result NAPESCO has reduced both lost time

who are dedicated, professional, well trained and committed to

incidents (LTI) and total recordable incidents (TRI) since 2013.

delivering the highest level of service to our clients.

NAPESCO QHSE Management System (QHSEMS) is certified to
both ISO:9001 and ISO:14001.

Services Provided
Upstream Oilfield Services

Additionally, among the services provided are safety and risk

NAPESCO’s upstream services include well cementing and

consultancy, health consultancy, environmental services and

intervention. It also offers filtration services, which are frequently

monitoring, geological and material testing, leak detection and

required to clean undesirable debris from drilling, workover and

repair waste management, fire systems and training.

completion fluids.
51.7%

Downstream & Energy Services
The Downstream and Energy Services segment of our business
includes a number of diversified activities with HSE, Engineering and
Consultancy Services being core competencies. These services
are supported by state-of-the-art environmental laboratory, leading
technologies in the field of waste management, and high caliber

NAPESCO
Ownership

professionals including Doctorates, Engineers, and Scientists.

OTHERS

48.3%

QURAIN
PETROCHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES
COMPANY

Investment Portfolio
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Insha'a Holding Company was established in October 2005 to meet the

INSHA'A HOLDING

increasing demand on building and construction materials. The company
invests the resources of its subsidiaries efficiently in to achieve all its
commitments and support them to be a pioneer in their field of business.
Insha'a Holding company aims to be a pioneer through the creative
management, using technology, advanced methods and committing to
provide products with high quality. The company also seeks to exploit the
promising investment opportunity in the sector of manufacturing and trading
construction materials in the local market, the Middle East and International
markets as well as establishing new factories or acquiring influential shares
in building and construction materials companies.

Insha'a Subsidiaries

Bubiyan Ready-Mix Company (BRM)
BRM was established in 2005 to serve the Kuwaiti construction industry needs. It’s currently
considered one of the major supplier in Kuwait for Readymix. It operates two plants with a
production capacity of 200 cubic m / hour of wet-mix concrete. BRM owns 47 mixer trucks,
4 mobile pumps and other supporter machines to produce ~333 thousand cubic meter of
concrete annually – representing 3% of the market share in Kuwait. It has over 100 employees
and has successfully obtained the ISO 9001:2008 certification.

SANDCO for General Trade and Contracting Company
SANDCO was established in 1997 with a capital of KD 180 thousand with the sole purpose
of extracting and treatment of natural and washed sands, gatch soil, backfiling sand and
sieved sand in the local market. It is specialized in production and supply of all types of
washed/treated soil according to accepted international specifications. It is backed up by
a large fleet of machinery to produce its products, SANDCO uses the latest technology to
satisfy all market needs and requirement of treated sand solutions. It currently own seven
stations for sieving, washing and treating sand. SANDCO also successfully obtained its ISO
9001:2006 certification.

Insha'a Ownership
Name of Company

Ownership%

Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company and Subsidiaries

60%

United Building Company

40%
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Bayan Establishment for General Trading & Contracting
Company
Bayan was established in 2006, under the umbrella of Insha’a Holding as a company specialized
in production and supply of all types of washed and treated soil according to international
standards and specifications. Today, Bayan holds a leading market position in conducting
treatments of sand types of soil such as Washed Sand, Gatch Soil, Agriculture Soil and Sieved
Sand. It extracts its raw materials by drilling and converts the same into products through
modern washing and treatment methods.

Tashyeed Combined Company
Tashyeed was established in 2005 and operates in the field of producing interlock, curbstone,
and paving concrete. It currently operates three production lines for interlock blocks, which
outputs 8 different shapes and thicknesses and another two production lines for making
curb-stone and 60x60 concrete paving blocks with five different shapes and thicknesses.

EPO Gulf Specialties Company
EPO was established in 2010 to manufacture and supplies Cement Admixtures, Concrete
Admixtures, Concrete and Steel Protective, Mortar Admixtures, Repair Mortars, Repair
Concretes, Grout Mortars, Epoxy Mortars, Epoxy Coatings, Carbon Fiber Strengthen Products
& various Construction chemicals.
EPO Gulf has three production lines; Concrete Admixture Production, with an annual capacity
of around 40 million liters; Cementitious Production Line for producing the Adhering Products,
Isolation Products & Concrete Repair Products with an annual capacity of 6,000 ton; and
Epoxy Production Line for making Epoxy Protective Paints and Epoxy Grout with an annual
capacity of 1,500 ton.
EPO Gulf also offers concrete admixture solutions, repair and protection systems, and structural
strengthening systems. All solutions comply with international standards and engineered to
improve production and application.

Corporate
Governance
Report
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Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company is committed to applying the best practices in the field of corporate governance based on
the belief that the principles of sound management and institution efficiency depend on the continued application of these standards.
In order to achieve this, Qurain is committed to implementing the applicable principles of governance issued by the Capital Markets
Authority for companies listed on Boursa Kuwait. This implementation is guaranteed to consolidate and develop the governance
culture throughout the company and among its employees to achieve the best protection and balance between the interests of the
company management and its shareholders and other related stakeholders.
The company's Board of Directors and Executive Management established the governance structure through the policies, rules and
regulations that governs its business, and define the responsibilities, tasks and duties of each member of its management, committees
and employees. This system is developed and modified whenever necessary to ensure the achievement of its objective.
During the fiscal year, the company has committed itself to implementing and reporting all standards of governance in accordance with
Capital Markets Authority standards. The Board of Directors and its committees, through periodic reports, supervised the application
process and no cases of non-compliance with the approved rules were reported during the fiscal year.
This report aims at providing a brief overview of the implementation of corporate governance requirements and procedures in the
company to the shareholders:
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The First Rule: Board of Directors Composition at Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company (Public K.S.C)
Date of election
Name

Position

Membership

Academic qualification and experience

/ appointment of
the Secretary

Sheikh Mubarak

Chairman of

Non-Executive Sheikh Mubarak Abdullah Al-Mubarak Al-Sabah currently

Abdullah

the Board of

holds several positions in local and regional companies,

Al-Mubarak

Directors

including:

Al-Sabah

•

Vice Chairman of Action Group Holdings Company

•

Founder and Chairman of Action Real Estate Company

•

Founder and Chairman of Action Hotels Company

•

Member of the Board of Directors of the EgyptianKuwaiti Holding Company

•

Member of the Board of Directors of Equate
Petrochemical Company.

Sheikh Mubarak was commissioned as an Officer from the
Royal Military Academy Sandhurst in the United Kingdom,
and served as an armoured core officer in the Kuwait Armed
Forces. He studied at Cambridge University where he
received a Master of Philosophy in International Relations
and has a BA (Hons) in Politics and Economics from the
University of Buckingham in the United Kingdom.
He has Received the Chevalier de la Légion d’Honneur, the
highest French order of merit and was also Honoured as a
Young Global Leaders (YGL) 2009, by the World Economic
Forum. He is also a member of several international
institutions and organizations specialized in international
relations, defense studies, economic affairs and strategic
affairs.

1/7/2018
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Date of election
Name

Position

Membership

Academic qualification and experience

/ appointment of
the Secretary

Sadoun A. Ali

Vice Chairman
and Chief

Executive

Sadoun Ali currently holds several positions in local and
regional companies, including:

Executive
Officer

•

Member of the Board of Directors of Burgan Bank,
member of the Audit Committee, member of the
Appointments and Benefits Committee, member of
the Credit Management Committee and member of
the Executive Committee.

•

Member of the Board of Directors and Member of the
Compensation and Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Financial Accounting at the Bank of
Baghdad.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of the Advanced
Technology Company.

•

Chairman of the Board of Directors of United Oil
Projects.

•

Member of the Board and member of the Audit
Committee of the Chairman's Club.

•

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Insha'a Holding
Company.

He also occupied several administrative, accounting and
executive offices in companies working in investment,
banking and industrial sectors. He worked for ten years in the
financial management of the National Petroleum Company.
He holds a Bachelor of Science in Financial Services
Management from the University of Ashland, USA.

1/7/2018
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Date of election
Name

Position

Membership

Academic qualification and experience

/ appointment of
the Secretary

Attallah R.

Member of

Al-Mutairi

the Board of

Independent

Mr. Attallah Al-Mutairi holds several positions in local and

1/7/2018

international companies, including:

Directors

•

Chairman of the Board of Directors of BIG Investment
Group.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of Triple E. Holding
Company.

He also held several administrative and engineering
positions since 1974 in companies and institutions working
in the fields of energy, electricity, petrochemicals and
petroleum. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Electrical
Engineering

Tariq M.

Member of

AbdulSalam

the Board of

Non-Executive Mr. Tariq Abdulsalam holds several positions in local and
international companies including:

Directors

•

Chief Executive Officer of Investments at Kuwait
Projects Company (KIPCO).

•

Member of the Board of Directors of United Real
Estate Company.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of Jordan Kuwait
Bank.

•

Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of North
Africa Holding Company.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of Saudi Dairy and
Food Company (SADAFCO).

•

Member of the Board of Directors of KAMCO Investment
Company.

He has held various leadership positions since 1997 in
institutions working in the field of banking, investment and
insurance. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting
from the Faculty of Commerce, Economics and Political
Science at Kuwait University.

1/7/2018
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Date of election
Name

Position

Membership

Academic qualification and experience

/ appointment of
the Secretary

Abdullah S.

Member of

Al-Otaibi

the Board of

Non-Executive Mr. Abdullah Al Otaibi currently holds several positions in

1/7/2018

various companies including:

Directors

•

Deputy General Manager of Qarwa Project Management
Company.

•

Chief Executive Officer of National Consumer Holding
Company.

•

Member of Board of Directors of Oman International
Company for Urban Development and Investment.

•

General Manager of National Paper Products Company.

He also held several administrative and executive positions
in several institutions working in various fields, including
consulting and real estate.

Fuad A. Akbar

Secretary of

Secretary of

Mr. Fuad Akbar currently holds several positions in various

the Board of

the Board of

companies including:

Directors

Directors

•

Chairman of North Africa Holding Company.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of United
Petrochemical Company.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of United Oil Projects
Company.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of Kuwait Paraxylene
Production Company (KPPC).

•

Member of the Board of Directors of the Kuwait Styrene
Company K.S.C.

•

Member of the Board of Directors of Insha'a Holding
Company

He also held several positions and membership of boards of
directors and subcommittees in local and regional companies
working in various fields including petrochemicals, oil and
investments. He graduated from the University of Miami,
USA, with a Bachelor's Degree in Industrial Engineering.

1/7/2018

47

Corporate Governance Report

Meetings of the Board of Directors during the Fiscal Year

Name of the Member

Meeting No.

1

2

3

Meeting date

1/4/2018

1/5/2018

1/7/2018

Position
Sheikh Mubarak
Abdullah Al-Mubarak
Al-Sabah

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

4

5

6

7

22/7/2018 17/9/2018 23/10/2018 30/1/2019
Attendance

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Vice Chairman and
Sadoun A. Ali

Chief Executive
Officer

Attallah R. Al Mutairi
Tariq M. Abdulsalam
Abdullah S. Al-Otaibi
Fuad A. Akbar

Member of the
Board of Directors
Member of the
Board of Directors
Member of the
Board of Directors
Secretary of the
Board of Directors

The Second Rule: Responsibilities and Accomplishments of the Board of Directors
1.

Approve the main objectives, strategies, plans and policies of the company. This includes, as a minimum, the following:

•

The comprehensive strategy of the company and the main business plans.

•

The appropriate capital structure of the company and its financial objectives.

•

A clear policy for distributing profits (cash/non-cash).

•

Key performance objectives, supervising the implementation process, and company's overall performance.

•

The company's organizational and functional structures and reviewing them on a periodic basis.

2.

Approve the annual budgets, and approve the interim and annual financial statements.

3.

Supervise the company's main capital expenses, and acquisitions/disposal of assets.

4.

Approve financing up to 50% of the capital and recommend amendments to the authorized capital.

5.

Approve and follow up developments on financial restructuring, including mergers and acquisitions, liquidation and 		
acquisitions, annual budgets, profits and other operations affecting the Company's budget.

6.

Approve entry into or withdrawal from any of the transactions and business.

7.

Ensure company compliance with the policies and procedures that guarantee company’s compliance with the internal
systems and regulations set forth.

8.

Ensure accuracy and integrity of data and information to be disclosed.
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9.

Periodical disclosure and publications of the company's activities, and any effective developments of its operations.

10.

Establish effective communication channels that allow the company shareholders to continuously and periodically assess
company's different activities and major developments.

11.

Establish a companywide corporate governance code, and supervise the effectiveness of the code.

12.

Set up and follow up on the activities of specialized committees formed from the Board and define their Charters that
specifies their terms’, authorities and responsibilities.

13.

Ensure that the company's organization structure is characterized with transparency and clarity, in order to allow 		
the decision-making process, and realize sound governance principles, segregate powers and authorities of both the
Board of Directors and the executive management through the following:
•

		
•
14.

Approve and enhance the internal procedures and systems related to the company's operations and development,
in addition to specifying tasks, competences, duties and responsibilities for different organization levels.
Approve the delegation of authority of the executive management.

Determine the authorities delegated to the executive management, along with the procedures for taking decisions and
the validity of such delegation. The Board of Directors also specify matters reserved for decisions by the Board.

15.

Supervise and monitor the performance of members the executive management and ensure that they perform the tasks
assigned to them. The Board of Directors should conduct the following:
•

		
•
		
•
		
•
		
16.

Ensure that the executive management performs their tasks in accordance with the approved policies and 		
procedures set forth by the Board of Directors.
Convene routine meetings with the executive management to discuss the business course, obstacles and 		
problems encountered, in addition to presenting and discussing material information relevant to company's activities.
Set performance indicators for evaluating the executive management, where such indicators should be in line with
the company's objectives and strategy.
Specify employee’s remuneration tranches, such as fixed remunerations, performance-based remunerations,
and remuneration in the form of shares (Employee Share Option Plans).

The appointment or termination of any of the executive management members, including the chief executive officer or an
equivalent position.

17.

Ensure the establishment of succession programs and plans in the company.

18.

Establish a stakeholder policy that respect and protect their rights.

19.

Establish a related party policy, to limit conflict of interest situations.

20.

Continuously ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal controls applied in the company and its affiliates, through
the following:
•

Ensure the soundness of the financial and accounting systems, including financial reporting systems.

•

Ensure the implementation of adequate control systems set for measuring and managing risks, through identifying

the risks surrounding the company, and establishing an environment that advocates a companywide risks mitigation culture,
and transparently disclosing such risks with stakeholders and the company's related parties.
21.

Approve risks criteria and company susceptibility.

22.

Recommend the appointment of independent auditors to the company’s general assembly.
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23.
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Appoint Secretary of the Board of Directors from among its members, executive management members or from abroad.
The Board shall determine his duties in line with the level of assigned responsibility of the role which includes coordinating,
recording and maintaining Board minutes of meetings. The appointment or dismissal of the Board of Director's Secretary
shall not be enforced unless with a resolution from the Board.

24.

Appoint the Head of Internal Audit and determine the responsibilities of the Internal Audit Department.

25.

Call to convene the general assembly of the company when necessary, at the request of shareholders who hold at least
10% of the capital of the company or at the request of the external auditor of the company within 15 days from the date of
the request.

26.

Report on the Company's financial position and the results of its work to the General Assembly.

27.

Maintain the confidentiality of all confidential data, information and projects in the Company and its activities, obtained in
the course of performing Board duties.

Committees of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors forms specialized committees and sets a charter clarifying its powers and responsibilities in order to assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities. A sufficient number of non-executive and independent board members are appointed in these
committees who possess the necessary qualifications for membership. These committees are responsible for their functions before the
Board of Directors, but this does not relieve the Board of Directors of their responsibility for the duties assigned to these committees.
The following is an overview of the independent specialized committees established by the Board of Directors:
1 Audit and Risk Management Committee
Date of formation and duration: The committee was formed on 22/7/2018 with a validity period of the current Board term of three years.
Objective:
To assist the Board of Directors in implementing its responsibilities effectively with regard to reviewing financial reports, internal
controls, and internal and external auditing. The Committee is also responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its
supervisory responsibilities regarding risk management and compliance by reviewing the risks that the company may face and making
the necessary related recommendations to the Board of Directors.
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Committee members and meetings during the fiscal year:

Members of the
Committee

Meeting #
Date

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

1/4/2018

1/5/2018

15/5/2018

22/7/2018

26/8/2018

23/10/2018

30/1/2019

Position

Attendance

Tariq Abdulsalam

Chairman

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Abdullah Al-Otaibi

Member

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Attallah Al-Mutairi

Member

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Duties and Accomplishments of the Committee during the fiscal year:
1.

Review the interim and annual financial statements and report of the external auditor, and determine any significant impacts
on the financial position of the company and approve them preliminarily before submission to the Board of Directors for
final approval.

2.

Analyze the observations of external auditors on the financial statements of the company and follow up on action that
has to be taken in their regard if applicable.

3.

Analyze the accounting principles and policies of the company and examine any changes that may affect the financial
position of the company and identify the reasons for these changes whenever required.

4.

Ensure the company's compliance with applicable accounting laws and regulations.

5.

Hold periodic meetings with the external auditor and at least four times with the internal auditor and whenever needed, at
the request of the committee or the auditors.

6.

Review the results of the internal audit reports and ensure that corrective actions have been taken regarding the observations
in the reports.

7.

Review the charter, work plan and internal audit needs.

8.

Oversee the work of the internal audit department in the company in order to verify its effectiveness in carrying out its duties
and tasks.

9.

Appoint an independent auditor to prepare a report reviewing the internal control systems to be submitted to the Committee
and submit this report the Capital Markets Authority on an annual basis.

10.

Review and initially approve the policies and procedures of the internal audit department.

11.

Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment or reappointment of the external auditors or their replacement and
determine their fees.

12.

Prepare and review risk management strategies and policies prior to Board’s approval and ensure that they are consistent
with the size and activities of the company.

13.

Review the periodic reports submitted by the Risk Management Department for the purpose of monitoring the risks and
reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness of the systems and procedures of monitoring and measuring risks in the company.

14.

Ensure the availability of adequate resources and systems to manage and ensure the independence of risk personnel from
the operational activities of the Company.
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15.

Assist the Board of Directors in identifying and evaluating acceptable risk limits in the Company and ensuring that the
Company does not exceed the approved risk limits.

16.

Review the deals and transactions proposed to be conducted by the company with related parties, and make appropriate
recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.

2 Nominations and Remunerations Committee
Objective:
The objective of the committee is to assist the Board of Directors in complying with corporate governance principle relating to
nominations and remunerations for members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management. It recommends the nomination
and re-nomination of directors and executive management members; establishes remunerations policies, as well as reviewing the
needs and skills required for membership of the Board of Directors and determining the different categories of remunerations.
Date of formation and duration of the committee: The committee was formed on 22/7/2018 with a validity period of the current Board
term of three years.
Committee members and meetings during the fiscal year:
Meeting #
Members of the committee

Date

1

2

3

4

1/4/2018

1/5/2018

28/6/2018

30/1/2019

Position

Attendance

Tariq Abdulsalam

Chairman

√

√

√

√

Attallah Al-Mutairi

Member

√

√

√

√

Sadoun Ali

Member

√

√

√

√

Duties and Accomplishments of the Committee during the fiscal year:
1.

Recommend the nomination, appointment, reappointment and removal of members of the Board of Directors, members
of the Committee and members of the Executive Management and make recommendations regarding the above to the Board.

2.

Ensure that the remuneration of directors and executive management members are consistent with the long-term interests
of shareholders within the appropriate control framework.

3.

Create a clear relationship between the executive management performance and rewards remunerations

4.

Review and recommend the executive management's remunerations.

5.

Ensure the continued applicability of independency of the independent board member.
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The Third Rule: Recruiting Highly Qualified Candidates for the Board of Directors and Executive Management
About the Nominations and Remunerations Committee
The Board of Directors has formed a Nominations and Remunerations Committee consisting of three members, including an independent
member, to assist in the nomination and selection of members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board's Committees and
members of the Executive Management. The committee selects candidates according to the company's needs and the required
skills to manage its business and sets the principles for Board and executive Management remunerations. The Committee submits
its remuneration recommendations for initial approval by the Board of Directors and final approval by the General Assembly of the
Company.
Remuneration and incentive system for Board of Directors and Executive Management
The Company follows the remuneration and incentives standards for the Board Members, in line with the requirements of the applicable
laws of the State of Kuwait and the rules of governance. The total remuneration shall not exceed 10% of the net profits of the Company
(after deduction of depreciation, reserves and shareholders' dividends of not less than 5% of the company's capital or any higher
percentage, as provided for in the Company's Articles of Association). The remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors
is approved by the General Assembly in its annual meeting, upon the recommendation of the Nominations and Remunerations
Committee. The independent Board member may be exempted from the maximum remuneration, subject to the approval of the
Company's Ordinary General Assembly.
As for the executive management remuneration, it is determined based on the set KPIs linked to the management objectives for each
functional level and performance results achieved by the company, including:
Fixed Remuneration:
These remunerations are determined by the level of responsibilities assigned, the levels of expertise and competencies of each
employee and the career path of the job. This type is determined including the allowances and benefits according to the employment
functional level and the approved employee salary scheme.
Performance-linked Remunerations:
This portion of remunerations is allocated based on the individual performance of executive management members and the overall
performance of the company. The annual remunerations proposal is prepared by the Human Resources Department and it is calculated
based on the specific allotments and performance evaluations of each employee. The remuneration is calculated according to a fixed
criterion for the calculation of remunerations either (as a fixed amount for each functional level or a percentage of the salary or salary
multiplier). The remunerations amount is determined based on the employee's performance evaluation rate.
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The report of remunerations, benefits and incentives granted to the members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Management for the year 2018/2019
1 Board of Directors (K.D/Year)
Members of the Board
of Directors

Remuneration of the Board

Remuneration for the Membership of

of Directors

the Committee

KD 150,000

-

Total Remunerations
KD 150,000

2 Executive Management (K.D/Year)
Fixed Remunerations
Executive Management (salaries)

Performance Linked Remunerations

KD 459,036

KD 219,557

Shares
KD 381,104

Stock-option remunerations are paid in accordance with the Employee Stock Option plan, 30% of the options ownership rights are
earned in the first year after granting, 30% for the second year and 40% for the third and final year.
The Fourth Rule: Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting
Commitments of the Board of Directors and Executive Management to the soundness and integrity of financial reports
The Executive Management has made a written statement to the Board of Directors certifying that the financial reports of the Company
are presented soundly and fairly, and state all the financial aspects of the Company including operational data and results. They
further certify that the financial data are prepared according to the international accounting standards approved by the Capital Market
Authority and that the Executive Management is responsible for the validity and accuracy of these data.
In turn, the Board of Directors of Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company undertakes to its shareholders through this report to
present its financial statements in a sound, fair and accurate manner, and all members have signed this declaration and it is maintained
in company records.
Audit Committee formation
The Company formed an Audit Committee in line with the nature of the company’s activities in. The Audit Committee is fully independent,
and consists of three members, including an independent member. Committee members possess the necessary scientific qualifications
and professional experience in the accounting and financial fields. There was no contradiction between the recommendations of the
Audit Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors.
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Independence and impartiality of the external auditor
The External Auditor is appointed upon the approval of the General Assembly based on the recommendation of the Board of Directors.
The External Auditor of the company is fully independent from the Company and its Board of Directors and shall not carry out any
additional assignments for the Company related to audit and auditing activities, which may affect neutrality or independence of the
External Audit. The Audit Committee also verifies the independence of the external auditor, and reviews and discusses the issued
annual and quarterly financial reports by the external auditor before submitting them to the Board for final decision/ approval.
The Fifth Rule: Sound Systems of Risk Management and Internal Controls
The approved organizational structure of the Company includes an independent risk management and compliance department. This
Department is responsible for measuring and following up various types of risks that may face the company and report on these
risks. This Department is fully independent and reports directly to the Board Audit & Risk Committee and the Board. It possesses the
authorities necessary for performing its tasks to the fullest and does not have any financial authorities or powers. The Department
recruits the qualified human resources that has the necessary professional qualifications.
The company's approved organizational structure also has an independent internal audit department that reports directly to the Audit
and Risk Committee and the Board of Directors. This department effectively analyzes the company's internal control environment.
The company relies on internal control and monitoring systems in all its activities by observing the principles of internal control of the
dual control process, namely the proper identification of authorities and responsibilities, complete separation of duties and non-conflict
of interest, dual examination and control, and dual signature. This is achieved through a clear delegation of authorities’ structure for
financial and administrative duties.
The Sixth Rule: Promote Ethical Standards and Responsible Conduct
The company implements its Board approved Code of Conduct, which includes standards and policies that consolidate the culture
of professional conduct and ethical values of the company and the basic principles of professional ethics within the framework of
its corporate governance. The promotion of these standards within the company enhances investor confidence in the company’s
integrity and soundness of its financials.
The Code of Conduct is based on the principle of compliance of each member of the board of directors and executive management
with all laws, regulations and professional standards for the interests of the company, its shareholders and other stakeholders. The
code also includes the obligation of each member not to exploit the powers and authorities of their positions, and the assets and
resources of the company in order to achieve a personal interest for themselves or for others. The code also includes the mechanisms
that prevent members of the Board and staff from the exploitation of insider information that came into their possession by virtue of their
positions within the company or assist others to achieve a personal interest and to act justly and fairly with all parties in the company.
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The company has developed an internal reporting system to facilitate reporting by employees regarding their doubts about improper
practices or suspicions about financial reporting, internal or other control systems. The reporter is granted the confidentiality
and protection from any retaliation or punishment for reporting these doubts. The company’s rules also mandate maintaining the
confidentiality of the internal information of the company and sets the procedures and disciplinary consequences for violations to
the code set for professional conduct.
Overview of conflict of interest policies
The company follows a conflict of interest policy approved by its Board which aims to reduce conflicts of interest situations that may
arise from the company's business process. This policy includes clear examples of interest conflict situations and ways to address
them. A conflict of interest policy states that any member of the Board shall notify the Board of Directors of any personal interests that
the Board member may have in the business and contracts related to the company's business. Such notification is recorded in the
minutes of Board meetings and the member that has an interest in a certain business is not allowed to vote on a Board resolution on
that subject. The Chairman of the Board shall also notify the General Assembly upon meeting regarding the businesses and contracts
for which a member of the Board of Directors has a personal interest along with a special report from the Auditor on the subject.
The Seventh Rule: Ensure Timely and High-Quality Disclosure and Transparency
The company follows a policy based on disclosure and transparency aimed to enable shareholders, investors and the public to know
and follow the company's activities, evaluate its performance and ethical standards. Accurate disclosure in a timely manner creates
an environment of trust and confidence among investors and other stakeholders regarding the company’s financial position and all
aspects related to its activities, financial statements and projects. Therefore, mechanisms of clear and transparent presentation and
disclosure of the material information and all matters relating to its activities has been developed. These include, financial statements,
performance, ownership and decision making. The Company, strives to abide by requirements and instructions related to disclosure
at the appropriate time issued by the various regulatory and supervisory authorities.
The Company maintains a special register that contains the disclosures of members of the Board of Directors and the Executive
Management. It includes the data relating to their transactions according to the insider trading disclosure rules for companies listed
on Boursa Kuwait. The data of the Register is updated periodically and contains information related to remunerations, salaries,
incentives and other financial advantages that are included in the annual report presented to the General Assembly. The register is
made available to any shareholder upon request free of charge.
The organizational structure approved by the Board of Directors includes an investor affairs unit. This unit provides the necessary
data, information and reports to current and prospective investors and answers their queries regarding the company. This unit is
independent enough to provide accurate data, information and reports on a timely manner through various appropriate means.
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The company relies, in its disclosures and communications with shareholders, investors and stakeholders, on various means,
including information technology. The company's website contains comprehensive information on its investments, financial reports
and essential information. The website also includes a section on corporate governance and investor affairs through which the recent
data are published to assist current and prospective shareholders and investors in obtaining the necessary information about the
company and assess its performance.
The Eighth Rule: Respect the Rights of Shareholders
The company's governance aims at achieving balance between the objectives of the company and objective of its shareholders',
protecting their rights, and achieving fair dealing and equality among all shareholders, so that no shareholders would receive any special
treatment, regardless of their position. The company does not at any time deny any shareholder an information or a granted right.
The Company's Articles of Association, regulations and internal policies also provide for the procedures that guarantee the achievement
of this objective, including the general shareholders' rights guaranteed by the Company such as:
1.

Register shareholding values in company records.

2.

Dispose shares from the registration of ownership and transfer and / or convert them.

3.

Obtain the approved share of dividends.

4.

Acquire the share of the company's assets in case of liquidation.

5.

Obtain the data and information about the company's activity and its operational and investment strategy in a regular
and easy manner.

6.

Review the shareholders register.

7.

Participate in the meetings of the shareholders General Assembly and vote on its decisions.

8.

Elect members of the Board of Directors.

9.

Monitor the company's performance in general, and board of directors’ performance in particular.

10.

Hold accountable the company's Board of Directors or Executive Management and file the claim of responsibility in the
event of failure to perform the tasks entrusted to them.

The Company has established a special register with Kuwait Clearing Company, that includes the names, nationalities and domiciles of
shareholders, and the number of shares owned by each of them. The information in this register is maintained with highly confidentiality
and protection
This register is updated with any change to the data recorded in it, and the company's shareholders may request to view the register
in accordance with the procedures of Kuwait Clearing Company. Updated records of the company's shareholders are also kept at
the Investor Affairs Unit in the company.
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The company is keen to encourage shareholders to participate and vote in the meetings of the company's assemblies through the
mechanisms established to participate in the meetings of the shareholders' general assembly and voting mechanisms. The company
complies with the following when arranging for shareholder's general assembly meetings:
•

Send an invitation by the Board of Directors to the shareholders to the hold their meetings including the agenda, time		
and venue of the meeting by advertising in accordance with the mechanism specified in the Companies Law.

•

Allow all shareholders to exercise the right to vote in person or by proxy without any obstacles that lead to the prohibition
of voting.

•

Provide shareholders with an opportunity to participate effectively in meetings of the General Assembly, discuss the agenda
items, and direct questions in their regard to the members of the Board of Directors and External Auditor.

•

No fees are imposed on any category of shareholders for attending of the General Assembly meetings, and there is no
preferential advantage for any category against other categories of shareholders.

The Ninth Rule: Recognize the Legitimate Interests of Stakeholders
Within the framework of its corporate governance policies, the Company follows policies for dealing with stakeholders in recognition
and protection of their rights. These policies include the need to deal with stakeholders on the same terms applied by the company
in dealing with members of the board of directors without any discrimination or preference. They also include the mechanisms to deal
with stakeholders and meet their requirements appropriately while maintaining a good relationship, respect the rights of shareholders
and maintain their confidentiality of information.
Qurain seeks to encourage stakeholders to participate in the follow-up of the company's various activities by providing the information
and data related to its activities in a timely and transparent manner. This is achieved through adopting a policy in which stakeholders
can report inappropriate practices of the company and provide appropriate protection in its policy for the reporting parties.
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The Tenth Rule: Encourage and Enhance Performance
The company strives to continuously train and develop its human resources to achieve better performance and governance. Training
and development efforts contributes to the enhancement and expansion of business It has a positive effect on the performance of
the Board and Management and enables them to fulfill their responsibilities and achieve better results. . Therefore, the company
has activated a policy to continuously train its Board and Management, and encourage participation in seminars and conferences
related to the company's business with the aim to identify the latest developments and keep abreast of changes in the company's
business sectors.
The training programs, workshops and global conferences in which the members participated during the fiscal year include:

1.

Gulf Petrochemicals and Chemicals Association (GPCA) 13th Annual Forum in Dubai, UAE

2.

Wharton Executive Education Course titled “Leading People Organization” in Dubai, UAE

3.

IHS Markit Chemicals 34th Annual World Petrochemical Conference in San Antonio, USA

4.

The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) 2018 Global International Conference in Dubai, UAE

5.

KIPCO Group Internal Audit Conference 2018 held in Manama, Bahrain

6.

11th CFO Strategies Forum MENA in Dubai, UAE

7.

London Business School course titled “Mergers and acquisitions” in London, UK

8.

KIPCO’s 3rd Annual Governance & Risk Conference in Sharq, Kuwait

The performance of the company’s Board of Directors and Executive Management are evaluated periodically through the Company's
approved evaluation mechanisms and KPIs related to Company as well as departmental strategic objectives.
The company relies on the self-evaluation system to assess the annually performance of the members and committees of the Board
of Directors. This system determines which aspects or requirements require attention or development. As for executive management
and employees, they are evaluated periodically according to specific performance indicators linked to their objectives, accordingly
the requirements for development and training are determined according to evaluation results.
The Board of Directors continuously emphasizes the importance of creating organizational values for employees within the company
by developing mechanisms and procedures that work to achieve the strategic objectives and improve performance in the company.
These mechanisms and procedures also enhance the culture of compliance with laws and regulations that create a disciplined work
environment that follows the prevailing rules. Additionally, they raise the spirit of responsibility and professional ethics, that result in
enhanced employee performance and effectiveness in the achievement of company objectives.
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The Eleventh Rule: Importance of Social Responsibility
Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company has approved its policy for Corporate Social Responsibility that commits to ethical behavior
and contribution to the sustainable development of society in general, and in the following areas in particular:
1.

Community: through ongoing investments in means for youth empowerment and development.

2.

Employees: through investing in developing our employees’ skillset and providing a healthy work environment.

3.

Environment: through our roles and responsibilities of representation on the board of our operational companies.

4.

Local Economy and Industry: through our continuous support and participation in forums that focus on developing the
local economic and industrial matters.

Qurain participations during the fiscal year

Kuwait Industries Exhibition EXPO 2018
QPIC participated during the year in Kuwait Industries Exhibition EXPO 2018, which was
organized by Kuwait Industries Union (KIU) under the auspices of H.H Sheikh Sabah Al-Ahmad
- The Amir of Kuwait - with the participation of 150 local factories and other Gulf corporations.
Qurain sponsorship and participation in the exhibition highlights the company’s vital role in the
sector; being one of the largest private sector investors in the field of Energy sector in Kuwait.

“Sharakah” CSR Forum
Sharakah forum is an annual event that QPIC, along with KIPCO group companies, organize
every year to establish a common language between stakeholders from different sectors such
as Public, Private & NGOs. The forum offers such stakeholders the opportunity to discuss
challenges and benefit from each other through the specialized workshops that are offered
throughout the forum activities with an aim to create a unified language of communication
between all current and potential stakeholders.

Employee of The Year
In line with QPIC commitment in providing a healthy work environment and a culture that
promotes work efficiency and job satisfaction to its employees. QPIC, Along with its parent
company (KIPCO) and group companies, held their annual Gala dinner 2019, in which each
company announces their Employee of the Year award to show appreciation and gratitude
for their employees and motivate success. QPIC group Employee of the Year award went to
Mrs. Vidya Shyam from the CEO office at Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company for her
outstanding efforts during the financial year 2018/2019.
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KIPCO Tmkeen Award
QPIC, Along with KIPCO and its companies, partnered with the Youth Empowerment Organization
(Tmkeen) to launch the second KIPCO Tmkeen Award for Young Entrepreneurs aged 18-33 with
existing retail & services businesses established no longer than five years ago and licensed in
Kuwait. The winning business concept received a grand prize valued at US$ 100,000 comprised
of a bundle of services provided by KIPCO Group companies, including financial, strategic and
operational consultation sessions, market studies, insurance coverage and advertising services.

INJAZ-Kuwait
INJAZ-Kuwait is a non-profit organization that was established in Kuwait in 2005 with an aim
to develop and prepare youth to succeed in global economy. Qualified volunteers from the
Private & Public Sectors volunteers to teach school students on specific topics related to work
readiness and business.

The Protégés
QPIC, along with the Kuwait Projects Company (KIPCO) group has been always keen on
supporting young kuwaiti youth in means that contributes to developing their life and leadership
skills eventually leading to community success.
Protégés is an innovative interactive program led by a group of mentors and on innovative training
methods. The KIPCO group, the strategic partner of the program and the main sponsor, launched
the program. The program encourages young people to discover their passion and provide them
with tools to help them fight the realm of life and the challenges of work and encourage them to
become active members of society. The program is designed to promote social and life skills
and the development of self-awareness as well as to focus on improving critical thinking and
creativity. This is achieved through workshops, projects, debates and speakers from guests
and traveling to a prestigious university. The Youth are mentored through a team of sponsors
from public personas with sound accomplishment, who provide their Protégés with advice and
practical experiences that qualify them to go to work and experience life.
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Audit & Risk Committee
Overview
The Board has formed the Audit Committee during 2006 to del-

During the Committee’s meetings, the Internal Audit department

egate its responsibilities, authorities and duties with regards to

prepared concise presentations highlighting reviews outcomes

ensuring the soundness and integrity of financial statements,

and statistical information on the status of audit findings and its

internal control systems, as well as monitoring the internal au-

implementations.

dit activities. In order to comply with Corporate Governance
requirements issued by the Capital Market Authority, the Com-

Throughout the year, the Committee approved:

mittee has been restructured in 2015 to become Audit and Risk
•

Company’s financial statements

•

The updated risk assessment & audit plan

Composition

•

Annual internal audit report

The Committee consists of three non-executive directors includ-

•

Corporate governance framework and annual report

ing one independent. The members are financially acumen and

•

Internal audit reports and periodic presentations

experienced.

•

Internal control review

•

Updated policies and procedures manuals

Roles and Responsibilities:

•

Internal audit charter

The Board has approved the revised Committee Charter in Jan-

•

Internal quality assurance report

uary 2019 as part of the annual revision process. The Charter

•

Quarterly risk reports

Committee.

mainly covers the below responsibilities:
Additionally, the Committee’s Chairman presented to the Board
•

Review the financial statements prior to the Board approval.

a brief overview on the Committee’s roles and assured the lack

•

Assess the Company’s internal controls on a periodic basis.

of any material breach of controls during the current fiscal year.

•

Review and monitor the internal audit activities on a continFurthermore; the external auditors did not raise any concerns

uous basis.
•

Define the scope of the external auditor, monitor the

per-

formance and conduct periodic meetings with the auditors.
•

on the effectiveness of internal control systems and issued an
unqualified report.

Review and monitor the risk management and compliance
activities.

Meetings and Achievements
The Audit and Risk Committee conducted five meetings during
the financial year ended March 31, 2019 (attended by all members) as illustrated below.

Name
Tariq M.
Abdulsalam
Abdullah S.
Al Otaibi

Title

Meeting

1/4/2018

1/5/2018

15/5/2018

Dates

22/5/2018

26/8/2018

23/10/2018

30/1/2019

Attendance

Committee Chairman

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Member

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Attallah R.

Independent

Al Mutairi

Member
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Department overview and Reporting lines

Internal Audit System

The primary objectives of the department are to:

The department uses a full-fledged Internal Audit Knowledge

•

Provide an independent assessment on the effectiveness

Management System to benefit from automating the Internal

and efficiency of the internal control systems.

Audit function. The system allows the in-house audit team to

Sustain the group corporate governance culture and evalu-

conduct audit reviews, monitor the progress of audit plans, auto

ate the effectiveness of risk management.

remind auditors and auditees and the system is considered as

Provide value added support to the management team

a depository of relevant data’s pertaining to corporate gover-

and to the subsidiaries’ internal audit functions, in order to

nance, compliance and risks.

•
•

achieve the corporate objectives and provide support.
•

Provide consultancy services to the Company.

The automation of the Internal Audit improved the implementation pace of open issues and provided valuable statistics. The

Audit activities at QPIC and related subsidiaries are either de-

chart on the right illustrates the statistical summary of QPIC

pendent on in-house resources or outsourced to approved

Group audit observations highlighted during the year ended

consultants. Special assignments and areas requiring special

March 31, 2019.

expertise like IT governance and security controls are also outsourced.

As illustrated on the right, the percentage of implemented observations across the group companies has increased from 67% for

To ensure independence, the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) reports

the year ended March 31, 2018 to 81% for the year ended March

functionally to the Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee and

31, 2019. The department is committed to the standardization

administratively to the Chief Executive Officer. The CAE has non

of the Internal Audit work at QPIC and its subsidiaries without

restricted access to the Chairman of the board and directors.

jeopardizing the uniqueness and independence of each entity.
The risk assessment, the audit plan and audit reports have all

Risk Assessment & Risk-Based Internal Audit Plan

become consistent. The standardization improves credibility,

The risk assessment exercise is being revised annually and a

accuracy and saved time.

standard risk assessment methodology has been used across
the industrial group, pre-defined objectives were set and measurable criteria’s and standard risk rating system has been applied. The annual audit plan has been standardized as well for
QPIC and its subsidiaries and have been uploaded electronically
in order to monitor progress and red flag delays if any.
Internal Control Systems
The Board always strives to ensure efficiency and effectiveness
of the internal controls and provide a reasonable assurance regarding preservation of the company’s assets and operations
from the various risks that may affect the company internally
and externally. Therefore, the company has appointed an independent audit firm to conduct an Internal Control Review for the
third year as mandated by the Capital Market Authority (CMA)
corporate governance regulations.
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1%

11%

4%
2%
1%

QPIC Group
Internal Audit
Observations

81%

Implemented Observations
Partially Implemented Observations
Not Yet Due Observations
Risk Accepted Observations
NA (Closed) Observations
Past Due Observations

Financial
Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS
OF
QURAIN PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRIES COMPANY
K.S.C.P.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company K.S.C.P.
(the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the
consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flow
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary significant
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
Valuation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income comprise of quoted and unquoted equity
investments. Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income that do not have a quoted price
in an active market are fair valued using other valuation
techniques.
The valuation of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income is inherently subjective,
most predominantly for the instruments classified under
level 3 since these are valued using inputs other than the
observable market data, as disclosed in the accounting
policies section of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
Unquoted equity investments classified under level 3 are
valued using discounted cashflow method. The valuation
requires management to make certain assumptions
about the models’ inputs, including forecast cash flows,
weighted average cost of capital, terminal growth rate and
the discount rate. Given the inherent subjectivity in the
valuation of the instruments classified under level 3, we
determined this to be a key audit matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS
OF
QURAIN PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRIES COMPANY
K.S.C.P. (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Valuation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)
Our audit procedures comprised, amongst others,
involving our valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and the
appropriateness of the valuation models and inputs used
to value the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, including comparing valuation
models used with that used in the prior years. We also
assessed the appropriateness of key inputs used in the
valuation such as the cash flow projections and long-term
growth rates used to extrapolate these cash flows and the
discount rate and compared these to available external
data.
Additionally, we assessed the adequacy of the fair value
disclosures in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
Other information included in the Group’s 2019 Annual
Report
Other information consists of the information included in the
Group’s 2019 Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board
of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and
we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual
Report after the date of our auditor’s report. Management
is responsible for the other information.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
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and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audits, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditors' Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS
OF
QURAIN PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRIES COMPANY
K.S.C.P. (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Independent Auditors' Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS
OF
QURAIN PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRIES COMPANY
K.S.C.P. (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have
been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the
report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors
relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in
accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained
all the information and explanations that we required for
the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial
statements incorporate all information that is required by
the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended, and its
executive regulations, as amended, and by the Parent
Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly
carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, no violations of the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as
amended, and its executive regulations, as amended, nor
of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred
during the year ended 31 March 2019 that might have had
a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or
on its financial position.

BADER A. AL-ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207 A
EY
(AL AIBAN, AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS)
30 April 2019
Kuwait
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2019

ASSETS

Current assets

Notes

2019

2018

KD

KD

Bank balances and cash

5

114,281,755

83,075,651

Inventories

7

27,741,862

31,973,335

Trade and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Non-current assets

6

Due from a related party

19

Financial assets available for sale

8

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in associates and joint venture
Goodwill and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

34,555,141
7,805,466

150,631,404

-

1,250,000

-

209,855,940

126,582,387

127,983,640

546,750,318

521,037,140

60,861,428

47,166,045

223,322,875

9

91,483,254

11

TOTAL ASSETS

2,209,657

184,384,224

8

10

33,372,761

105,361,802
731,134,542

-

90,078,460

91,869,100

671,668,544

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

12
13

Non-current liabilities

Employees’ end of service benefits
Borrowings

13

Non-controlling interest put option

25

Contingent consideration payable

25

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY

1,445,193

10,915,622

62,306,621

58,081,667

13,224,715

12,080,766

312,520

-

66,981,890

67,664,544

1,957,873

82,476,998

-

79,745,310

144,783,619

137,826,977

Share capital

14

109,919,258

109,919,258

Voluntary reserve

14

30,812,629

26,121,555

Statutory reserve
Treasury shares

Share based payment reserve

14
14

Other reserves

30,934,331

(13,363,430)

(12,657,395)

(1,888,883)

283,822

121,722

Fair value reserve

136,378,657

Retained earnings

134,054,397

Foreign currency translation reserve
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

9,569,569

15

26,243,257

92,701

117,596,928

7,557,389

111,669,457

436,538,250

386,826,972

586,350,923

533,841,567

149,812,673
731,134,542

147,014,595
671,668,544

Sheikh Mubarak A. Al Mubarak Al Sabah
Sadoun A. Ali			
Tanweer Ahmed Khalfay
Chairman 					Vice Chairman & CEO		CFO

The attached notes 1 to 27 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Notes
Revenue from rendering of services

2019

2018

33,502,761

29,853,291

KD

KD

Revenue from sale of goods

161,801,498

148,985,678

Cost of revenue from rendering of services
Cost of revenue from sale of goods

(20,014,490)

(111,805,126)

(16,196,567)

Total cost of revenue

(131,819,616)

(110,828,054)

63,484,643

68,010,915

28,846,366

20,890,028

2,322,657

1,419,495

Total revenue

195,304,259

GROSS PROFIT
Dividend income

Share of results of associates and joint venture
Interest and other income

8
9

Unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

93,970

Foreign exchange gain (loss)

Realised gain on sale of financial assets available for sale
Selling and distribution expenses

Impairment loss on financial assets available for sale

(22,475,763)

(2,512,975)

(2,620,907)

(297,672)

Realised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

-

(25,222,531)

-

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

12,140,475

(133,580)

(21,602,554)

Finance costs

(94,631,487)

38,041

-

General and administrative expenses

Profit before taxation and Board of Directors’ remuneration

16,029,102

178,838,969

115,684

(22,357,682)

(1,647,944)

-

(105,620)

(839)

61,073,427

53,339,882

Taxation

16

(1,427,444)

(1,039,944)

Profit for the year

17

59,495,983

52,149,938

45,333,292

35,197,632

59,495,983

52,149,938

Board of Directors’ remuneration

14

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interest

14,162,691

Earnings per share:
Basic - attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company

Diluted - attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company

(150,000)

18
18

43.64 fils
43.56 fils

The attached notes 1 to 27 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

(150,000)

16,952,306

33.82 fils

33.75 fils
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2019
2019

2018

59,495,983

52,149,938

20,909,936

-

260,665

-

Net changes in fair value of financial assets available for sale

-

10,817,679

Impairment of financial assets available for sale transferred to consolidated statement of income

-

1,647,944

43,875

(125,411)

Note
Profit for the year

KD

KD

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year:

Other comprehensive income for the year that will not be reclassified
to consolidated statement of income in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations

Other comprehensive income (loss) that are or may be reclassified to
consolidated statement of income in subsequent periods:
Financial assets available for sale:

 et gain on sale of financial assets available for sale transferred to
N
consolidated statement of income

Changes in associates reserves

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
(Loss) gain on hedge of a net investment in foreign operation
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interest

-

9
20

2,903,154
(727,873)

23,389,757

(115,684)

(5,849,604)

1,020,810
7,395,734

82,885,740

59,545,672

67,251,922

44,582,288

82,885,740

59,545,672

15,633,818

The attached notes 1 to 27 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

14,963,384

4,691,074
-

-

Transfer to reserves

Issue of treasury shares against ESOP (Note 23)

-

-

109,919,258

Non-controlling interests arising on business combination

As at 31 March 2018

-

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

Dividends (Note 14)

-

-

Purchase of treasury shares

3,638,758

-

Transfer to reserves

Issue of treasury shares against ESOP (Note 23)

Share based payment reserve (Note 23)

-

-

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

26,243,257

-

-

-

-

-

-

Profit for the year

-

22,604,499

109,919,258

-

22,604,499

30,934,331

-

-

-

-

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year

As at 1 April 2017 (Restated)

PPA adjustment arising on business combination

109,919,258

As at 1 April 2017 (As previously reported)

-

109,919,258

As at 31 March 2019

Non-controlling interest put option movement

-

-

-

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

Dividends (Note 14)

-

Other movements (Note 3)

Non-controlling interests arising on business combination (Note 25)

-

-

Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries (Note 3)

-

-

Purchase of treasury shares

Share based payment reserve (Note 23)

-

-

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

26,243,257

-

-

109,919,258

-

26,243,257

KD

KD

109,919,258

Statutory
reserve

Share
capital

Profit for the year

As at 1 April 2018 (Restated)

IFRS 9 transition adjustment (Note 2.3)

As at 1 April 2018 (As previously reported)

The attached notes 1 to 27 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2019

26,121,555

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,638,758

-

-

-

22,482,797

-

22,482,797

30,812,629

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,691,074

-

-

-

26,121,555

-

26,121,555

KD

Voluntary
reserve

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(12,657,395)

-

-

-

-

(1,576,471)

415,876

-

-

-

-

(11,496,800)

-

(11,496,800)

(13,363,430)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,179,140)

473,105

-

-

-

-

(12,657,395)

-

(12,657,395)

KD

Treasury
shares

92,701

-

-

-

5,888

-

-

-

-

-

-

86,813

-

86,813

121,722

-

-

-

-

-

-

29,021

-

-

-

-

-

-

92,701

-

92,701

KD

Share based
payment
reserve

283,822

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

283,822

-

283,822

(1,888,883)

(755,420)

-

-

-

(905,745)

(511,540)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

283,822

-

283,822

KD

Other
reserve

117,596,928

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,648,089

11,648,089

-

105,948,839

-

105,948,839

136,378,657

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

19,801,897

19,801,897

-

116,576,760

(1,020,168)

117,596,928

KD

Fair value
reserve

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company

7,557,389

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2,263,433)

(2,263,433)

-

9,820,822

-

9,820,822

9,569,569

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,012,180

2,012,180

-

7,557,389

-

7,557,389

KD

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

111,669,457

-

(11,461,503)

-

-

-

-

(7,277,516)

35,197,632

-

35,197,632

95,210,844

-

95,210,844

134,054,397

-

-

(14,542,081)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(9,382,148)

45,437,845

104,553

45,333,292

112,540,781

871,324

111,669,457

KD

Retained
earnings

386,826,972

-

(11,461,503)

5,888

(1,576,471)

415,876

-

44,582,288

9,384,656

35,197,632

354,860,894

-

354,860,894

436,538,250

(755,420)

-

(14,542,081)

-

(905,745)

(511,540)

29,021

(1,179,140)

473,105

-

67,251,922

21,918,630

45,333,292

386,678,128

(148,844)

386,826,972

KD

Sub-total

147,014,595

6,604,430

-

(11,781,040)

-

-

-

-

14,963,384

(1,988,922)

16,952,306

137,227,821

10,990,716

126,237,105

149,812,673

(1,157,099)

1,729,882

-

(9,490,608)

(3,444,800)

(438,875)

-

-

-

-

15,633,818

1,471,127

14,162,691

146,980,355

(34,240)

147,014,595

KD

Non-controlling
interests

533,841,567

6,604,430

(11,461,503)

(11,781,040)

5,888

(1,576,471)

415,876

-

59,545,672

7,395,734

52,149,938

492,088,715

10,990,716

481,097,999

586,350,923

(1,912,519)

1,729,882

(14,542,081)

(9,490,608)

(4,350,545)

(950,415)

29,021

(1,179,140)

473,105

-

82,885,740

23,389,757

59,495,983

533,658,483

(183,084)

533,841,567

KD

Total equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2019
2019

2018

Profit before taxation and Board of Directors’ remuneration

61,073,427

53,339,882

Realised gain on sale of financial assets available for sale

-

(115,684)

11,650

839

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Notes

Adjustments to reconcile profit before taxation and Board of Directors’
remuneration to net cash flows:
Net unrealized / realised loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Share of results of associates and joint venture

Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Provision for slow moving and obsolete Inventory
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Write off of fixed assets

9

11

Unwinding expense on contingent consideration payable

Unwinding expense on non-controlling interest put option
Provision for doubtful debts

Charge for expected credit losses on trade receivables
Impairment loss on financial assets available for sale
Depreciation

6

38,931

225,532

2,035

297,672
132,597

45,354

Trade and other receivables

-

-

1,647,944

6,049,441

5,294,781

75,807

51,217

8,547,726

Working capital adjustments:

-

226,212

11

23

(55,282)

-

124,055

Share based payment expense

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

(12,140,475)

6

10

KD

(16,029,102)

9,175

Amortisation

Finance costs

KD

2,512,975

2,122,531

-

7,865,112

2,620,907
2,020,730

65,014,274

60,981,715

748,353

814,734

Inventories

5,178,060

(2,296,218)

Trade and other payables

8,499,830

5,154,434

Related party balances

1,677,235

Cash from operations

81,117,752

Taxation paid

Board of Directors’ remuneration paid

Employees’ end of service benefits paid
Dividends received from associates

Net cash flows from operating activities

64,584,824

(2,539,760)

(1,134,459)

(1,399,698)

(1,404,912)

92,686,585

68,446,733

(150,000)

9

(69,841)

15,658,291

The attached notes 1 to 27 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

(150,000)

6,551,280
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Notes

Purchase of financial assets available for sale

Proceeds from sale of financial assets available for sale

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net movement in time deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

25

Purchase of treasury shares

-

3,012,593

-

(455,785)

-

1,800,000

-

(5,949,046)

(5,608,706)

(950,415)

-

5

(7,400,000)

210,000

14

96,163

(21,340,467)

20,292,290

91,784,804

(31,173,249)

(90,370,343)

(1,179,140)

(1,576,471)

(13,452,479)

(2,512,975)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of subsidiaries

(10,111,673)

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of foreign currency translation

5

(10,839,810)

364,659

(2,620,907)

(11,781,040)

(37,739,928)

(25,039,108)

23,806,104

21,015,245

(2,048,085)

Net increase in bank balances and cash

84,975

(29,092,468)

397,298

Payment of finance costs

Bank balances and cash at 31 March

(3,025,664)

1,678,558

(15,275,854)

Proceeds from issuance of treasury shares against ESOP

Bank balances and cash at 1 April

(2,429,440)

(16,220,314)

Proceeds from borrowings
Dividends paid

-

KD

11

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings

2018

KD

-

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries

2019

78,805,351

102,611,455

The attached notes 1 to 27 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

(1,051,913)
57,790,106
78,805,351
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 30 April 2019. The shareholders of the Parent Company have the power to amend these consolidated financial statements
at the Annual General Assembly after issuance.
The Parent Company is a Public shareholding company, established by Amiri Decree No 432/2004 on 10 November 2004. The
Parent Company’s shares were issued for public subscription by the Ministerial Decree No. 34/2004 on 28 November 2004.
The Parent Company’s shares are listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.
The Parent Company’s registered address is at 26th floor, KIPCO Tower, Khalid Bin Al Waleed Street, Sharq, P.O. Box No
29299, Safat 13153, Kuwait.
The activities of the Parent Company are carried out in accordance with the Article of Association. The principal activities of
the Parent Company are:
•
•
•
•
•
•

To manufacture all types of chemical and petrochemical materials and any other derivatives.
To sell, purchase, supply, distribute, export and store these materials and participate in all the activities relating to the same
including the establishment and lease of the necessary services.
To participate in Equate Petrochemical Company K.S.C. (Closed), Kuwait Aromatics Company K.S.C. (Closed), Kuwait
Styrene Company K.S.C. (Closed) and Kuwait Olefins Company K.S.C. (Closed).
Contribute in industrial companies as well as finance, manage and trade in its shares.
Develop industrial and craft zones and projects launched by the State or private sector.
Establishment of industrial projects or contribute therein after obtaining the necessary approvals from the Public Authority
for Industry and the concerned authorities.

The Parent Company may pursue the above mentioned activities in the State of Kuwait and abroad, originally or by proxy. It
may have an interest in or participate in any manner with entities that carry on business activities similar to its own or which may
assist the Parent Company in realising its objects in Kuwait or abroad, and it may buy or otherwise acquire such companies.
2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”).
Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the fair
value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets a fair value through profit or loss,
contingent consideration payable and non-controlling interest put option.
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. Such reclassifications do not
affect previously reported total assets, total equity, total liabilities and profit reported for the year.
Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”), which is the functional and presentational currency of the Parent Company.
2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those used in
the previous year, except for the adoption of the new IFRSs effective during the year as mentioned below that are relevant to
the Group.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers effective with a date of initial application of annual
periods on or after 1 January 2018. This standard supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IAS 18 Revenue along with
related IFRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and SIC 31.

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)
This standard removes inconsistencies and weaknesses in previous revenue recognition requirements, provides a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues and improves comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities,
industries, jurisdictions and capital markets.
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method (without practical expedients), with the effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 April 2018). Accordingly, the information presented
for 2018 has not been restated – i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, under IAS 18, IAS 11 and related interpretations.
The adoption of this standard did not have any material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The Group has adopted IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments issued in July 2014 with a date of initial application of annual periods
on or after 1 January 2018. The requirements of IFRS 9 represent a significant change from IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. The new standard brings fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to
certain aspects of the accounting for financial liabilities.
IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for a) the classification and measurement of financial assets, b) impairment for financial
assets and c) general hedge accounting. Details of these new requirement as well as their impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are described in Note 2.3.
a) Classification and measurement
Under IFRS 9, financial assets such as bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables and due from a related party
that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive (FVOCI) comprise equity instruments which the Group had irrevocably elected, at initial recognition or transition, to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Under IAS
39, the Group’s equity securities were classified as Financial assets available-for-sale. Therefore, reclassification for these
instruments is not required on initial adoption of IFRS 9.
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) comprise certain equity securities that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term and certain debt instruments that failed the SPPI test.
Financial liabilities previously measured at amortised cost under IAS 39 have been classified and measured under IFRS 9 at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. There have been no changes in the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities on the adoption of IFRS 9.
(b) Impairment of financial assets
The Group previously recognized impairment losses on financial assets based on incurred loss model, under IAS 39. IFRS 9
replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ model. The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally
changed the Group’s accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with
a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.
For the Group’s financial assets, the management has applied the standard’s simplified approach and has determined lifetime
expected credit losses on these instruments.
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The management has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the counter parties and the economic environment.
The management considers a financial asset in default when the contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the management may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full.
(c) Hedge accounting
The general hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 aim to simplify hedge accounting, creating a stronger link with risk
management strategy and permitting hedge accounting to be applied to a greater variety of hedging instruments and risks.
The adoption of general hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 does not result in any change in accounting policies of the
Group and does not have any material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
2.3

TRANSITION TO IFRS 9

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described
below:
a)
Comparative periods have not been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 April 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for 31 March 2018 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to
the information presented for 31 March 2019.
b)
The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of
initial application.
•
•
•

The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.
The designation of certain financial assets and financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL.
The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

The impact of this change in accounting policy as at 1 April 2018 as described in the below table:

Closing balance under IAS 31( 39 March 2018)

Impact on reclassification and re-measurements:

Equity investments from available-for-sale to FVTPL
Debt instruments re-measured to fair value

Impact on recognition of Expected Credit Losses on
financial assets:

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables based on
Expected Credit Loss model

Opening balance under IFRS 9 on date of initial application
of 1 April 2018

Retained earnings

Non-controlling
interest

Cumulative
changes in fair
value

111,669,457

147,014,595

117,596,928

1,020,168

(61,608)

4,745

(4,560)

(1,020,168)

(87,236)

(34,425)

-

112,540,781

146,980,355

116,576,760

KD

KD

KD

-
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The following table shows reconciliation of original measurement categories and carrying value in accordance with IAS 39
and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 April 2018.

Original classification
under IAS 39

Original carrying
amount under
IAS 39

New
classification
under IFRS 9

KD

Re-measurement/
ECL / others
KD

New carrying
amount under
IFRS 9
KD

Bank balances and cash

Loans and receivables

83,075,651

Amortised cost

-

83,075,651

Due from a related party

Loans and receivables

1,250,000

Amortised cost

-

1,250,000

Trade and other receivables

Loans and receivables

33,372,761

Amortised cost

(121,661)

33,251,100

Quoted equity investments

Available for sale

8,473,718

FVOCI

-

8,473,718

Quoted equity investments

Available for sale

2,383,357

FVTPL

-

2,383,357

Unquoted equity
investments

Available for sale

193,924,265

FVOCI

-

193,924,265

FVTPL

2,209,657

FVTPL

-

2,209,657

Available for sale

5,074,600

FVTPL

(66,168)

5,008,432

Fund and managed
portfolios
Debt investments

Adoption of IFRS 9 did not result in any change in classification or measurement of financial liabilities.
2.4

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations those are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under IAS
17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers)
and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease
term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The
lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset.
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating
and finance leases.
IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not before an
entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs. The Group will adopt IFRS 16 when effective and will
quantify the impact upon adoption.
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Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries (investees which are
controlled by the Parent Company) including special purpose entities. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
•
•
•

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
•
•
•

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises, the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling
interest and other component of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained
is recognised at fair value. The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019. The subsidiaries of the Group are:
Legal ownership %
Company name

2019

2018

United Petrochemical Industries Company K.S.C.
(Closed)

Country of
incorporation

96.00

96.00

Kuwait

94.00

94.00

Kuwait

94.00

94.00

Kuwait

51.76

51.56

Kuwait

40.76

40.11

National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. **
(“NAPESCO”)

Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

53.29

52.05

Kuwait

Insha’a Holding Company K.S.C. (Closed) (“INSHA”)

60.00

60.00

Kuwait

60.00

-

Kuwait

Qurain for Plastic Industries Company K.S.C.
(Closed)

Qurain for Basic Material Industries Company K.S.C.
(Closed)
United Oil Projects Company K.S.C. (Closed) *
Saudi Dairy and Food Stuff Company S.S.C.
(“SADAFCO”) **

EPSCO Global General Trading Company W.L.L.
(“EPSCO”)
* Acquisition of additional stake in the subsidiary.

Principal activities
Manufacturing of plastic
materials
Manufacturing of plastic
materials
Manufacturing of
chemicals

Trading of chemical
products

Manufacturing of dairy &
food stuff Products
Support services for
drilling and repairing oil
wells
Holding Company

Manufacturing and trading
of rubber

** Acquisition of additional stake in subsidiary and change in effective interest due to buy back of own shares by subsidiary.
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Legal ownership %
2019

2018

Country of
incorporation

SADAFCO Bahrain Company S.P.C

100.00

100.00

Bahrain

Foodstuff and dairy products

SADAFCO Poland sp. Z.o.o. (“SADAFCO Poland”)

100.00

-

Poland

Holding Company

-

Poland

Company name

Principal activities

Held through SADAFCO
SADAFCO Jordan Foodstuff Company LLC
Mlekoma sp. Z.o.o.
Foodexo sp. Z.o.o.

SADAFCO Qatar Company LLC

100.00
76.00
76.00

100.00
-

Jordan

Poland

Dairy products
Dairy products

75.00

75.00

37.00

-

Poland

100

100

Kuwait

79.99

79.99

India

96.2

96.2

Kuwait

Industrial

50

50

Kuwait

Industrial

Bayan for General Trading Establishment and
Contracting Company W.L.L

50

50

Kuwait

Industrial

Combined for General Trading and Construction
W.L.L

50

50

Kuwait

Industrial

51

51

Kuwait

Industrial

SADAFCO Kuwait Foodstuff Company W.L.L.
Mlekoma Dairy Z.o.o

49.00

49.00

Qatar

Foodstuff and dairy products

Kuwait

Held through NAPESCO
Napesco International Petroleum S.P.C Company
Napesco India L.L.P

Foodstuff and dairy products
Foodstuff and dairy products
Dairy products

Drilling and Maintenance of Oil
wells

Support services for petroleum
and natural gas mining

Held through INSHA
Bubiyan Readymix Company W.L.L

Sandco for General Trading and Contracting
Company W.L.L

EPO Gulf Specialized Company K.S.C. (Closed)

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and
included in administrative expenses.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the consolidated statement of income.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in
accordance with IFRS 9 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.
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Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in the consolidated statement
of income.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
Financial instruments
Financial assets applied from 1 April 2018
Initial recognition
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.
A “regular way” purchase of financial assets is recognised using the trade date accounting. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulations
or conventions in the market place.
Classification of financial assets
To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instruments
and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the Group’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics.
Business model assessment
The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve
its business objective. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or
is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g.
financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘Sell’ business model. The
Group’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios
and is based on observable factors such as:
•
•
•

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reported to the entity's key management personnel;
The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and,
in particular, the way those risks are managed;
How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s assessment.
The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Group's original
expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets applied from 1 April 2018 (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)
Assessment of whether contractual cashflows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI test)
The Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (the
‘SPPI test’).
‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition that may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).
The most significant elements of profit within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money
and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the profit rate is set.
In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows
that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and profit on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.
The Group reclassifies when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. The reclassification takes
place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent.
Measurement categories of financial assets
The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets (fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), available for sale (AFS),
held-to-maturity and amortised cost) have been replaced by:
•
•
•

Debt instruments at amortised cost
Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition
Financial assets at FVTPL

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
•
•

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method
adjusted for impairment losses, if any.
Bank balances and cash and trade and other receivables are classified as debt instruments at amortised cost.
Equity instruments at FVOCI
Upon initial recognition, the Group may elect to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity instruments at
FVOCI when they meet the definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
Such classification is determined on an instrument-by- instrument basis.
Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to the consolidated statement of income. Dividends are
recognised in consolidated statement of income when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment. Upon disposal cumulative
gains or losses are reclassified from fair value reserve to retained earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The management classifies certain equity investments at FVOCI and are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets applied from 1 April 2018 (continued)
Measurement categories of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL
The Group classifies financial assets fair value through profit and loss when they have been purchased or issued primarily for
short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together,
for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured
in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a ﬁnancial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or signiﬁcantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Changes in fair values and dividends are recorded in consolidated statement of income according to the terms of the contract,
or when the right to payment has been established.
Included in this classification are certain quoted equity securities that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term, certain debt instruments and funds that failed the SPPI test.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost. No
impairment loss is recognised for equity instruments that are classified as financial assets at FVOCI. The amount of expected
credit losses is estimated at each reporting date.
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and other receivables which generally do not have a significant financing
component. Amounts due from related parties that are interest free and receivable on demand, the Group expects no default on such amounts after reviewing and assessing the financial position of these parties. Accordingly, the measurement of
amounts due from related parties under IFRS 9 does not have impact on the consolidated statement of income of the Group.
The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected
life of trade and other receivables.
Credit-impaired financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events, constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience indicates, that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred that meet below criteria.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:
•
Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
•
A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
•
The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;
•
It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
•
The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
Write-off of financial assets at amortised cost
The Group writes off a financial asset at amortised cost when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
statement of profit or loss.
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets applied from 1 April 2018 (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (continued)
As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date.
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
The Group recognises an impairment loss in consolidated statement of income for all financial assets at amortised cost with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in consolidated statement of income.
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially
different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset
are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised
at fair value.
A financial asset (or where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:
(i)
(ii)

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Group has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither 		
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assets.

Financial assets applied up to 31 March 2018
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “financial assets available for sale”, “loans and receivables”, or as “derivatives designated as hedging instruments” in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The Group has not classified
any of its financial assets as held to maturity.
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.
A “regular way” purchase of financial assets is recognised using the trade date accounting. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulations
or conventions in the market place.
The Group’s financial assets include cash and short term deposits, trade receivables and other receivables, due from a related
party and financial assets available for sale.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets applied up to 31 March 2018 (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
The Group has not classified any financial asset as “derivatives designated as hedging instruments” at inception upon initial
recognition.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The category of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is sub divided into:
(a)
Financial assets held for trading
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
(b)
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition:
Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if they are managed, and their performance is evaluated on
reliable fair value basis in accordance with a documented investment strategy. After initial recognition financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are remeasured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of income.
Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets available for sale include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.
After initial recognition, financial assets available for sale are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or
losses recognised in other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of income.
Financial assets available for sale whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if
any.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the interest rate method. The interest rate method amortisation is included in the
consolidated statement of income. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
The Group classifies cash and short term deposits, time deposits with banks and accrued income and other receivables and
due from a related party as “loans and receivables”.
Bank balances and cash
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of, cash in hand, bank balances, short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets applied up to 31 March 2018 (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Amortised cost
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate method (“EIR”) amortisation and the losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:
•
•

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrowers or a group of
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial assets available for sale
For financial assets available for sale, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset available for sale or a group of financial assets available for sale is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as financial assets available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
those financial assets available for sale previously recognised in the consolidated statement of income, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses on equity investments
are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the consolidated statement of income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at “fair value through profit or loss”, “loans
and borrowings”, or as “derivatives” designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.
The Group classifies its financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss as trade and other payables, borrowings
and bank overdraft.
The Group has not classified any financial liability at “fair value through profit or loss” or “derivatives” at inception upon initial
recognition.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss
After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR interest rate method amortisation process.
Amortised cost
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The EIR amortisation is included in finance cost in the consolidated statement of income.
Accounts and other payables
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier or
not. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and murabaha payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of income over the period of the borrowings.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Non-controlling interest put option
Written put options in respect of which the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid the delivery of cash, are recognised as financial liabilities. Under this method, the non-controlling interest is not derecognised when the financial liability
in respect of the put option is recognised, as the non-controlling interest still has present access to the economic benefits
associated with the underlying ownership interest. Non-controlling interest put options are initially recognised at the present
value of redemption amount and reduction to controlling interest equity. All subsequent changes in liability is recognised in the
consolidated statement of income. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods, and assumptions made are
based on market and Group specific conditions existing at each reporting period.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement
of income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
Fair value
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, financial assets available for sale, at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
•
•

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
•
•
•

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Costs are those expenses incurred in bringing each product
to its present location and condition and excludes borrowing costs. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost basis
method.
Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale
Finished goods

-

purchase cost on weighted average basis

costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable overheads
based on a normal level of activity.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred on completion and
disposal.
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Investment in associates and joint venture
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The Group’s investments in its associates and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in associates and a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount
of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates or joint venture since
the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associates or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.
The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associates and joint venture. Any change in other comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s other comprehensive
income. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associates and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest
in the associate.
The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate or joint venture is shown on the face of the consolidated
statement of income.
The financial statements of the associates and joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its
investment in its associates or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as ‘Impairment
loss on associates or joint venture’ in the consolidated statement of income.
Upon loss of significant influence over the associates and joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associates and joint venture
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
consolidated statement of income.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost and is not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets as follows:
Building

10 to 50 years

Furniture, office equipment and fixtures

3 to 10 years

Plant, machinery and equipment
Computers

Motor vehicles

3 to 25 years
3 to 5 years

3 to 20 years

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises their purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
an item of property, plant and equipment to its working condition and location. Expenditure incurred after the
property, plant and equipment has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of income in the period in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of property, plant and equipment.

93

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment in associates and joint venture (continued)
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their value less
costs to sell and their value in use.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is
derecognised. The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end,
and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and are expensed as incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets
are as follows:
Brand with indefinite useful life*

Indefinite life

Leasehold rights

15-1 years

Brand with definite useful life**
Customer relationship

10 years

15-3 years

*Relates to a subsidiary SADAFCO
** Relates to a subsidiary NAPESCO and Mlekoma (Note 25)
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of
the intangible asset.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit
level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the asset is
derecognised.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and then its recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit). In determining fair value
less costs to sell an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by available fair value indicators.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Provisions
Provisions are legal claims and are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
End of service indemnity and employee benefit obligations
The Group is operating an unfunded post-employment defined benefit plans. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period
in which they occur in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Such actuarial gains and losses are also immediately recognized in retained earnings and are not reclassified to the consolidated statement of income in subsequent periods.
Past service costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of income on the earlier of:
•
•

The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
The date on which the Group recognizes related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘cost of revenue’, ‘general and administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and distribution expenses’ in the consolidated statement of income (by function):
•
•

Service costs comprises current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements.
The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, past service costs and
less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled. However, currently the plan is unfunded
and has no assets.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group also makes contributions to government scheme calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due
Provision is made for amounts payable to all employees under the Kuwaiti Labour Law and employee contracts. This liability,
which is unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a result of involuntary termination on the reporting
date.
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Share based compensation
The Parent Company operates an equity settled share based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of options or shares is recognised as an expense, together with a corresponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
or shares on the date of grant using the Black Scholes model. At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
Treasury shares
Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group and not yet
reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity. When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are
credited to a separate account in equity, “treasury shares reserve”, which is not distributable. Any realised losses are charged
to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings
and then to the statutory and voluntary reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to
offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve account. No
cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock dividend increases the number of treasury shares proportionately
and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.
Foreign currency translation
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in KD, which is also the parent company’s functional currency.
For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign
operation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.
i) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in consolidated statement of income with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation.
These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative
amount is reclassified to consolidated statement of income. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on
those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or consolidated
statement of income are also recognised in other comprehensive income or consolidated statement of income, respectively).
ii) Group companies
On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into KD at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date and their statements of income are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is reclassified to
consolidated statement of income.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot
rate of exchange at the reporting date.
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Hedge accounting
Hedges of a net investment in foreign operations
Hedges of net investments in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net
investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the
effective portion of the hedge are recognised as other comprehensive income, while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are recognised in the consolidated statement of income as other operating expenses. On disposal of the foreign
operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is transferred to the consolidated statement of
income.
The Group uses certain borrowings as a hedging instrument to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk on its investments
in foreign subsidiary. Refer to Note 20 for more details.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding discounts. The Group
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group
has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all revenue
arrangements, has pricing attitude and is also exposed to credit risk. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognised:
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Sale of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognized at the point in time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.
Service income
Service income is recognized when the service is rendered.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated statement of income in the period in which they are incurred.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contribution to KFAS
The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% in accordance with the modified calculation based on the
Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that the income from associates and subsidiaries and transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the contribution.
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Taxation
a. Zakat
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resolution No.
58/2007.
b. National Labour Support Tax (NLST)
The Group calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions No. 24 of
2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the period. As per law, income from associates and subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed
companies which are subjected to NLST are deducted from the profit for the year when determining taxable profit.
Overseas taxation
Overseas taxation is recorded in accordance with the laws enacted in the country where the subsidiary operates and is recorded under general and administrative expenses.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
Segment information
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and
incurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group to allocate resources and assess performance is consistent with the internal reports provided to the chief operation decision maker. Operating segments exhibiting
similar economic characteristics, product and services, class of customers where appropriate are aggregated and reported as
reportable segments.
4

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the amount of
the asset or liability reported in future periods.
Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
De-facto control
Management considers that the Group has de facto control over SADAFCO even though it has less than 50% of the voting
right. The factors considered by the Group included the voting shares, the relative size and dispersion of holdings by other
equity holders, attendance and voting patterns at previous equity holders’ meetings. There is no history of other shareholders
forming a group to exercise their votes collectively. This requires significant judgement and continuous assessment.
Classification of financial assets
Effective from 1 January 2018 (IFRS 9)
The Group determines the classification of financial assets based on the assessment of the business model within which the
assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Effective before 1 January 2018 (IAS 39)
Judgments are made in the classification of financial instruments based on the management’s intention at acquisition. The
Group follows the guidance on IAS 39 on classifying investments.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Judgments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets available for sale
Effective before 1 January 2018 (IAS 39)
The Group treats equity financial assets available for sale as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant”
or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment.
Estimation uncertainty and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items
The Group makes a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items. Estimates of net realisable value of inventories are
based on the most reliable evidence at the time the estimates are made. These estimates take into consideration ﬂuctuations
of price or cost directly related to events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date to the extent that such events conﬁrm
conditions existing at the end of year.
Valuation of unquoted financial assets
Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following:
•
recent arm’s length market transactions;
•
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;
•
an earnings multiple or industry specific earnings multiple;
•
the expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics; or
•
other valuation models.
Impairment of non-financial assets
An asset is impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset
in an arm’s length transaction. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An assessment is made at each statement of financial
position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that an asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
The determination of the cash flows and discount factors for non-financial assets requires significant estimation.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate
is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual
value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the management believes the useful
lives differ from previous estimates.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
A decline in the value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets could have a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Management assesses the impairment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Factors that are considered important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
•
significant changes in the technology and regulatory environments.
•
evidence from internal reporting which indicates that the economic performance of the asset is, or will be, worse than
expected.
Useful lives of intangible assets
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of its intangible assets for calculating amortisation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and
future amortisation charge would be adjusted where the management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty and assumptions (continued)
Impairment of goodwill
The Group’s management tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. The recoverable amount is
most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
Impairment of investment in associates
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss on the
Group’s investment in its associates, at each reporting date based on existence of any objective evidence that the investment
in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of income.
Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost
Effective before 1 January 2018 (IAS 39)
An estimate of the collectible amount of trade receivables is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.
For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually
significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time past due.
Effective from 1 January 2018 (IFRS 9)
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost. For trade and other receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Non-controlling interests put options
The fair value of non-controlling interest put options are recognised at the present value of redemption amount based on
discount future cash flow analysis. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods, and assumptions made are
based on market and Group specific conditions existing at each reporting period.
5

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash in hand

Cash at banks

Cash in portfolios

Short term deposits
Less: Short term deposits with original maturities of more than three months

Bank balances and cash for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows

2019

2018

1,116,131

1,177,231

KD

KD

16,896,012

11,412,416

95,928,423

68,621,388

(11,670,300)

(4,270,300)

102,611,455

78,805,351

341,189

114,281,755

1,864,616

83,075,651

Short term deposits of various currencies carries an effective interest rate in the range of 1.75% to 3% per annum (2018: 0.5%
to 3.5%) per annum.
Deposits amounting to KD 240,050 as at 31 March 2019 (2018: KD 214,250) are pledged to a local bank against letter of
guarantee and Murabaha payables (Note 13).
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (2018: Provision for doubtful accounts)
Accrued income
Prepayments

Other receivables

2019

2018

26,964,337

27,002,555

KD

KD

(2,457,260)

(2,146,036)

127,564

138,722

24,507,077

3,645,702
6,274,798

34,555,141

24,856,519

1,407,322

6,970,198

33,372,761

Movement in allowance for expected credit losses of trade accounts receivable is as follows:

At the beginning of the year

Opening loss adjustment based on lifetime ECL calculated under IFRS 9 (Note
2.3)
Charge for the year

Foreign exchange difference
At the end of the year

2019

2018

2,146,036

1,942,705

121,161

-

KD

124,055

66,008

2,457,260

KD

226,212

(22,881)

2,146,036

The above comparative for impairment provisions refers to IAS 39 measurement basis which applied on incurred loss model,
whereas the current year applies IFRS 9 which is on expected loss model.
Unimpaired receivables are expected on the basis of past experiences, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice of the
Group to obtain collateral over trade receivables.
Note 26.1 includes disclosures relating to the credit risk exposures and analysis relating to the allowance for expected credit
losses on the Group’s trade and other receivables. Other classes within trade and other receivable do not contain impaired
assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned
above.
7

INVENTORIES

As at 31 March, inventories comprise the following:

Raw and packing materials
Finished goods

Spare parts, supplies and other items
Goods-in-transit

Less: provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories

2019

2018

16,338,125

22,958,874

2,469,902

2,287,993

KD

6,787,987
3,083,206

KD

6,443,984
1,169,061

28,679,220

32,859,912

27,741,862

31,973,335

(937,358)

(886,577)
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INVENTORIES (continued)

Movement in the provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories is as follows:

At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Write-off

Foreign exchange difference

At the end of the year
8

2019

2018

886,577

1,670,303

-

(977,155)

937,358

886,577

KD

38,931

11,850

KD

225,532

(32,103)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Quoted equity securities

Unquoted equity securities

2019

2018

9,791,312

-

KD

213,531,563
223,322,875

KD

-

The fair value of investment in unquoted equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income amounting to KD
213,152,717 (2018: available for sale unquoted equity securities KD 194,218,847) was determined by management using
appropriate valuation methods based on the latest available information of the results and future projections, for which an
unrealized gain of KD 18,933,869 (2018: unrealized gain of KD 12,453,567 on available for sale unquoted equity securities)
has been recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. As at the reporting date, the cumulative unrealised
gain recognised in cumulative changes in fair value on those unquoted equity securities amounted to KD 136,651,913 (2018:
KD 117,718,044).
During the year, the Group earned dividend income of KD 28,846,366 (2018: KD 20,890,028 on its financial assets available
for sales) on its financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Fair value hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by valuation techniques is presented
in Note 24.
The classification of quoted and unquoted equity securities has been changed from financial assets available for sale to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income upon adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 2.3).
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are denominated in the following currencies:

Kuwaiti Dinar
US Dollar

Saudi Riyal

2019

2018

10,873,591

-

KD

212,050,687

398,597

223,322,875

KD

-
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE

The Group has the following investments in associates and joint venture:

Name of associates
Kuwait Aromatics Company K.S.C. (Closed) (“KARO”)

Country of
incorporation

2019

2018

Kuwait

20.00%

20.00%

Kuwait

47.50%

47.50%

Algerian Methanol S.P.A. (“Almet”)

Algeria

Al-Khorayef United Holding Company K.S.C. (Closed)
(“Al-Khorayef”)

Kuwait

United Precision Drilling Company W.L.L. (“UPDC”)

Legal ownership (%)

42.50%

42.50%

25.00%

25.00%

The movement in the carrying value of associates and joint venture is as follows:
2019

2018

90,078,460

85,819,737

43,875

(125,411)

KD

As at 1 April

Share of results

16,029,102

Share of other comprehensive income
Dividends received

Foreign currency translation adjustment

12,140,475

(15,658,291)

(6,551,280)

91,483,254

90,078,460

990,108

As at 31 March

KD

(1,205,061)

The carrying amount of the investment in associate and joint venture includes goodwill of KD 1,912,806 (2018: KD 1,912,806)
at 31 March 2019.
The associates and joint venture have contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2019 of KD 56,381,285
(2018: KD 19,931,659).
The following table illustrates summarised financial information of the Group’s investment in the associates and joint venture:

2019
Associates’ statement of financial position:
Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Revenue

Other individually
immaterial
associates

KARO
KD

KD

Total
KD

240,027,120

50,560,051

290,587,171

(242,769,725)

(25,292,467)

(268,062,192)

387,245,058

50,744,360

437,989,418

605,331,950

(215,344,287)

76,700,878

-

616,217,053

30,851,745

(5,374,969)
1,812,117
175,500

76,917,522

636,183,695

(220,719,256)

78,512,995

175,500

693,134,575
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE (continued)

2018
Associates’ statement of financial position:
Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Revenue

Other individually
immaterial
associates

KARO
KD

Total

KD

KD

385,442,335

67,975,972

453,418,307

(197,998,962)

(48,453,633)

(246,452,595)

381,128,640

49,917,356

431,045,996

519,579,019

(325,893,752)

49,063,035

-

427,510,963

39,867,420

(9,472,403)
8,231,180
501,652

65,204,973

559,446,439

(335,366,155)
57,294,215

501,652

492,715,936

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of its interest in associates and joint
venture is as follows:

2019

Other individually
immaterial
associates

KARO
KD

Net assets as at 1 April 2018

381,128,640

Dividends

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net assets as at 31 March 2019
Interest in associate

Share of net assets
Goodwill

Carrying amounts

2018

(75,535,000)

(1,160,613)

(76,695,613)

4,950,540

-

4,950,540

76,700,878
-

387,245,058
20%

77,449,012

-

77,449,012

KD

(30,517,001)

Net assets as at 31 March 2018
Interest in associate

49,063,035

-

(6,025,305)

381,128,640
20%

Share of net assets

76,225,728

Carrying amounts

76,225,728

Goodwill

1,812,117
175,500

-

78,512,995
175,500

50,744,360

437,989,418

12,121,436

89,570,448

14,034,242

91,483,254

25% to 47.50%

1,912,806

Other individually
immaterial
associates

KARO

Dividends

Foreign currency translation adjustment

KD

431,045,996

368,607,911

Other comprehensive income

KD

49,917,356

Net assets as at 1 April 2017
Profit for the year

Total

1,912,806

Total

KD

KD

42,127,429

410,735,340

(942,905)

(31,459,906)

-

(6,025,305)

8,231,180
501,652

57,294,215
501,652

49,917,356

431,045,996

11,939,926

88,165,654

13,852,732

90,078,460

Ranges from 25% to
47.50%

1,912,806

1,912,806
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Total

57,858,577

80,603,476

138,462,053

-

1,000,000

1,000,000

60,174,006

82,936,233

143,110,239

As at 1 April 2018

-

10,478,411

10,478,411

As at 31 March 2019

-

16,527,852

16,527,852

60,174,006

66,408,381

126,582,387

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Total

54,878,395

79,045,956

133,924,351

(869,628)

(951,317)

(1,820,945)

2019
Gross carrying amount:
As at 1 April 2018

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 25)
Additions (Note 19)

Foreign currency translation adjustments
As at 31 March 2019

Accumulated amortisation:
Charge for the year (Note 17)
Net carrying amount:
As at 31 March 2019

2018
Gross carrying amount:

As at 1 April 2017 (Restated)

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary

Foreign currency translation adjustments
As at 31 March 2018

KD

1,521,562
793,867

-

KD

3,849,810

KD

974,710
358,047

6,049,441

KD

2,508,837

KD

2,496,272
1,151,914

6,049,441

KD

6,358,647

57,858,577

80,603,476

138,462,053

As at 1 April 2017

-

5,183,630

5,183,630

As at 31 March 2018

-

10,478,411

10,478,411

57,858,577

70,125,063

127,983,640

Accumulated amortisation:
Charge for the year (Note 17)

Net carrying amount:
As at 31 March 2018

-

5,294,781

5,294,781

Goodwill
The carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets is tested for impairment on an annual basis (or more frequently if evidence
exists that goodwill and other intangibles might be impaired) by estimating the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units
("CGU") i.e. SADAFCO, NAPESCO and INSHA, using value-in-use calculations unless fair value based on active market price
in case of SADAFCO and NAPESCO and based on unobservable inputs in case of INSHA is higher than the carrying value
of the CGU. The recoverable amount of SADAFCO and NAPESCO has been determined using fair value based on active
market price and for INSHA based on unobservable inputs as at 31 March 2019. As a result of this exercise, management has
concluded that there is no impairment as at 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant,
machinery
and
equipment

Building
Cost:

As at 1 April 2018

Additions

Arising on acquisition of
a subsidiary (Note 25)
Disposals

Transfers (net)

Write off

Impairment

Foreign currency translation adjustment

As at 31 March 2019
Depreciation:

As at 1 April 2018

Charge for the year
(Note 17)

Arising on acquisition of
a subsidiary (Note 25)

Write off

Disposals

Foreign currency translation adjustment

KD

Furniture,
office
equipment
and fixtures

Motor
vehicles

KD

KD

KD

Total

KD

KD

43,353,788

50,262,545
3,845,509

1,130,302

9,342,853

2,442,850
106,755

10,657,359

8,956,474

114,358,510

2,663,778

2,860,049

167,862

375,383

61,220

6,128,292

449,925

5,580,214

718,149

(7,447,336)

-

-

-

-

(297,672)

(297,672)

1,068,220

272,809

104,439

1,549,548

3,757,890

480,389

(43,706)
-

762,874

(576,229)

(1,345,534)

(15,626)

(233,994)

-

-

699,048

16,220,314

-

(1,981,095)

-

(233,994)

-

47,667,048

62,806,314

10,267,340

3,731,950

13,479,593

137,952,245

5,698,280

10,706,554

4,783,890

1,300,686

-

22,489,410

1,355,866

5,376,352

1,405,354

410,154

-

8,547,726

292,504

1,679,997

83,364

216,748

-

2,272,613

(34,398)

(533,608)
709,674

-

256,720

(101,397)

-

(1,300,171)

-

(14,720)

-

(1,882,897)

210,788

87,806

-

-

1,264,988

32,590,443

13,479,593

105,361,802

As at 31 March 2019

7,568,972

17,837,572

5,183,225

2,000,674

As at 31 March 2019

40,098,076

44,968,742

5,084,115

1,731,276

Net book value

Capital
work-inprogress

(101,397)

Property, plant and equipment include an amount of KD 2,184,403 as of 31 March 2019 (2018: KD 2,785,075) mortgaged in
favor of a local bank against borrowings granted to the Group (Note 13).
.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Plant,
machinery
and
equipment

Building
KD

Cost:

As at 1 April 2017

KD

Motor
vehicles
KD

Furniture,
office
equipment
and fixtures
KD

Capital
work-inprogress

Total

KD

KD

41,648,560

40,664,303

7,902,794

2,222,114

4,243,011

8,753,376

96,680,782

Arising on acquisition of a
subsidiary

170,963

1,120,261

4,415,509

194,068

34,957

395,577

6,160,372

Transfers (net)

1,230,872

-

Additions

Disposals

Foreign currency translation adjustment
As at 31 March 2018
Depreciation:

As at 1 April 2017

Charge for the year (Note
17)
Disposals

Foreign currency translation adjustment
As at 31 March 2018
Net book value
As at 31 March 2018
12

162,112

-

5,835,837

514,853

1,320,773

(43,609)
164,618

(3,231,116)

(808,017)

(1,126,470)
50,262,545

(281,026)

9,342,853

(106,193)

2,442,850

(1,204,374)

8,956,474

114,358,510

4,692,570

7,831,727

3,504,717

1,113,657

-

17,142,671

1,270,742

4,650,775

1,627,499
(131,404)

316,096

(37,750)

-

-

7,865,112

(265,032)

(1,742,377)
10,706,554

(216,922)

4,783,890

(91,317)

1,300,686

-

(2,315,648)

37,655,508

39,555,991

4,558,963

1,142,164

8,956,474

91,869,100

-

5,698,280

(33,571)

-

15,275,854

(147,322)

43,353,788

(41,487)

353,566

-

(232,418)

(3,526,080)

(202,725)

22,489,410

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Dividend payable
Taxation payable

Board of Directors’ remuneration payable (Note 14)
Staff payables

Other payables

2019

2018

22,798,677

29,127,863

1,525,959

1,045,299

KD

10,112,834
150,000

KD

8,905,698
150,000

10,062,193

5,848,313

60,861,428

47,166,045

16,211,765

2,088,872
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BORROWINGS

Term loans denominated in USD
Term loans denominated in KD

Murabaha payables denominated in KD

Disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position:

Non-current
Current

2019

2018

62,448,266

61,560,000

1,978,816

2,020,166

KD

4,000,000

KD

15,000,000

68,427,083

78,580,166

2019

2018

66,981,890

67,664,544

68,427,083

78,580,166

KD

1,445,193

KD

10,915,622

Certain murabaha payables relating to INSHA (subsidiary) are pledged against property, plant and equipment amounting to KD
2,184,403 (2018: KD 2,785,075) (Note 11), deposits amounting to KD 240,050 (2018: KD 214,250) (Note 5), letter of guarantee
and corporate guarantees from INSHA.
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, comprise cash flow changes that are disclosed in consolidated statement
of cash flows and non-cash changes comprised of KD 727,876 (2018: forex gain of KD 1,020,810 and arising on acquisition
of a subsidiary of KD 1,586,412).
14

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a) Share capital
The authorised, issued and paid up share capital of the Parent Company comprises 1,099 million shares (2018: 1,099 million
shares) of 100 fils (2018: 100 fils) each, which is fully paid in cash.
b) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association,
a minimum of 10% of the profit for the year before tax and board of directors’ remuneration shall be transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of the Parent Company’s board of directors. The annual general assembly of the
Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such transfer when the reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital. The
reserve may only be used to offset losses or enable the payment of a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital in years when
profit is not sufficient for the payment of such dividend due to absence of distributable reserves. Any amounts deducted from
the reserve shall be refunded when the profits in the following years suffice, unless such reserve exceeds 50% of the issued
share capital.
c) Voluntary reserve
In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association,
a maximum of 10% of the profit for the year before tax and board of directors’ remuneration is required to be transferred to the
voluntary reserve.
Such annual transfers may be discontinued by a resolution of the shareholders’ general assembly upon a recommendation
by the Board of Directors. There are no restrictions on the distribution of this reserve except as mentioned in point (d) on the
following page.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

d) Treasury shares
2019

2018

Number of treasury shares

61,356,004

60,315,584

Cost

13,363,430

12,657,395

KD

Percentage of issued shares

KD

5.58%

Market value (KD)

5.49%

24,112,910

20,205,721

An amount equivalent to the cost of purchase of the treasury share have been ear marked as non-distributable from voluntary
reserve throughout the holding period of treasury shares.
e) Proposed dividends and Board of Directors remuneration
On 30 April 2019, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company proposed a cash dividend of 16% of the paid-up share capital
(2018: 14%) and Board of Directors remuneration of KD 150,000 (2018: KD 150,000) for the year ended 31 March 2019, which
is subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Assembly of the Parent Company.
Annual General Assembly of the shareholders held on 1 July 2018 approved the consolidated financial statements, dividends
of KD 14,542,081 and Board of Directors’ remuneration of KD 150,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018.
15

MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

Total non-controlling interest for year ended 31 March 2019 is KD 149,812,673 (2018: KD 147,014,595). Financial information
of subsidiaries having material non-controlling interests is provided below.
Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Country of
Incorporation

Subsidiary
SADAFCO
NAPESCO

Non-controlling
interest

Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia
Kuwait

Non-controlling interests
Accumulated
balance*

Profit
allocated

59.26%

139,278,015

10,571,336

46.71%

24,303,376

5,949,763

* The accumulated balance include intangible assets allocated to non-controlling interests by the Group.
Summarised statement of income:

2019

2019

2019

SADAFCO

NAPESCO

Total

KD

Sales

Cost of sales
Gross Profit

Interest and other income

General and administrative
expenses
Profit for the year

Attributable to non-controlling
interests
Attributable to equity holders
of the Parent Company

146,735,291

KD

33,677,049

KD

180,412,340

2018

KD

166,331,516

(99,767,793)

(20,014,490)

(119,782,283)

(101,663,039)

1,041,657

360,000

1,401,657

1,094,471

46,967,498

13,662,559

60,630,057

64,668,477

(30,234,015)

(2,230,624)

(32,464,639)

(34,780,722)

10,571,336

5,949,763

16,521,099

17,679,289

7,203,804

5,842,172

13,045,976

13,302,937

17,775,140

11,791,935

29,567,075

30,982,226
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MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Summarised statement of financial position:

2019

2019

2019

SADAFCO

NAPESCO

Total

KD

KD

KD

2018

KD

Non-current assets

191,363,390

27,980,645

219,344,035

186,825,615

Non-current liabilities

(11,176,732)

(2,239,794)

(13,416,526)

(10,365,553)

235,028,712

52,030,349

287,059,061

227,271,664

Current assets

89,010,053

32,294,541

121,304,594

Current liabilities

(34,167,998)

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the non-controlling
interests

139,278,015

24,303,376

163,581,391

139,916,218

95,750,697

27,726,973

123,477,670

87,355,446

Total equity

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company

Summarised cash flow information:
Cash from (used in):
-Operating
-Investing

-Financing
16

TAXATION

Contribution to KFAS
NLST
Zakat
17

(6,005,043)

(40,173,042)

82,975,134

(32,163,532)

2019

2019

2019

2018

SADAFCO

NAPESCO

Total

Total

KD

34,199,250

(17,760,249)

(14,757,116)

KD

15,532,182

(9,982,140)
(5,895,498)

KD

49,731,432

(27,742,389)
(20,652,614)

KD

35,549,286

(13,990,492)
(20,022,068)

2019

2018

202,138

160,559

KD

1,186,896

38,410

KD

813,633

65,752

1,427,444

1,039,944

2019

2018

22,659,161

19,180,372

6,049,441

5,294,781

-

1,886,959

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year is stated after charging:

KD

Staff costs

Depreciation (Note 11) *
Amortisation (Note 10)

Rent - operating leases
Inventories written-off

Inventories recognised as expenses

8,547,726
557,450

95,538,283

*The depreciation charged has been allocated in the consolidated statement of income as follows:

KD

7,865,112
263,655

75,357,324
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses
18

2019

2018

6,248,902

5,436,942

401,097

386,499

KD

1,897,727
8,547,726

KD

2,041,671
7,865,112

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (net of treasury shares) for the year as follows:
2019

2018

45,333,292

35,197,632

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

1,099,192,576

1,099,192,576

Weighted average number of outstanding shares

1,038,895,692

1,040,755,951

Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company

Weighted average number of treasury shares

Basic earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company

KD

Shares

(60,296,884)
43.64 fils

KD

Shares

(58,436,625)
33.82 fils

Diluted:
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company adjusted for the effect of dilutive instruments in profit due to exercise of potential ordinary shares of parent company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on the conversion of all employee stock options. The Parent Company has outstanding share
options, issued under the Employee Stock Options Plan (ESOP), which have a dilutive effect on earnings.

Diluted earnings:
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
Number of shares outstanding:

Weighted average number of outstanding shares
Effect of share options on issue

Diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company

2019

2018

45,333,292

35,197,632

1,038,895,692

1,040,755,951

1,040,778,116

1,042,893,767

KD

Shares

1,882,424

43.56 fils

KD

Shares

2,137,816
33.75 fils
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related parties primarily comprise major shareholders, associates, directors, key management personnel and entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are
approved by the Group’s management. Transactions between the Group entities have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note.
Transactions with related parties comprising of other related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Consolidated statement of financial position:
Trade and other receivables

Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Due from a related party

Consolidated statement of income:
Interest and other income
Dividend income
Finance Costs

Portfolio management fee

Others

2019

2018

547,843

547,843

-

155,768

8,012,658

9,612,136

9,612,136

-

-

1,250,000

Others

2019

2018

248,288

248,288

410,457

-

1,460,429

KD

-

-

KD

238,919

-

114,486

KD

KD

238,919

114,486

KD

KD

233,560
104,454

Certain financial assets of the Group are managed by a related party in a fiduciary capacity.
During the year a subsidiary Bubyian for Ready Mix Company W.L.L. (held through INSHA) purchased intangible assets comprising right of use of leasehold land from a related party for KD 1,000,000 (Note 10).
Compensation of key management personnel
The Board of Directors’ remuneration in their capacity of executives and other members of key management during the year
were as follows:

Salaries and short-term benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits
20

2019

2018

2,859,275

2,740,285

3,068,686

2,948,467

KD

209,411

KD

208,182

HEDGE OF NET INVESTMENT IN FOREIGN OPERATION

Borrowings as at 31 March 2019 includes term loans of US Dollar 204,950,000 (2018: 205,000,000) which has been designated as a hedge of the net investment in the subsidiary in Saudi Arabia, SADAFCO. This borrowing is being used to hedge
the Group’s exposure to the US Dollar foreign exchange risk on this investment. Gains or losses on the retranslation of this
borrowing are transferred to consolidated statement of comprehensive income to offset any gains or losses on translation of
the net investments in the subsidiary. There is no ineffectiveness for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENT

As at the reporting date, the Group had contingent liabilities amounting to KD 10,309,630 (2018: KD 6,937,860) in respect of
bank guarantees to a local bank in connection with certain credit facilities availed by a related party.
In addition, the Group has outstanding commitments for future capital expenditures amounting to KD 2,841,219 (2018: KD
10,593,867) and for operating lease rental amounting to KD 3,193,329 (2018: KD 4,167,744).
22

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management reporting purposes, the Group is organised into three major operating segments based on internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is the person responsible for allocating
resources to and assessing the performance of the operating segments has been identified as the parent company’s board
of directors. The Group does not have material inter-segment transactions. The principal activities and services under these
segments are as follows:
Investments

Investments are mainly for the long term and are in the Petrochemical sector.

Foodstuff

Production and supply of dairy products & food stuff

Manufacturing

Services

Mainly manufacture and supply chemicals for fiberglass, paint and petrochemical industries and general use.
Mainly oil field services that comprise of cementing and stimulation formulations for different applications and operating environments for Oil Rigs; and non-oil field services comprising of health, safety,
environmental, engineering and consultancy services.

Management monitors operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on segmental return on investments.
The following table presents information regarding the Group’s operating segments.
31 March 2019
Revenue
Result

Interest and other
income

Share of result from
associates and joint
venture
Depreciation

Impairment of property,
plant and equipment

Investments

Manufacturing

Foodstuff

Services

Total

28,834,716

14,891,919

146,735,291

33,677,049

224,138,975

791,353

252,484

919,575

359,246

2,322,657

15,340,176

688,926

-

-

16,029,102

KD

14,779,147

KD

4,129,263

(1,973,686)

(8,547,726)

-

(297,672)

-

-

(297,672)

Profit before taxation
and Board of Directors’ remuneration

(635,422)

28,452,752

3,043,841

Goodwill

Intangible assets

60,129,482

(5,535,353)

-

Total liabilities

17,311,883

KD

(975,130)

(2,394,367)

Total assets

22,430,629

KD

(63,557)

Finance costs
Amortisation

KD

(118,608)

-

(1,640,353)

-

(3,773,666)

(2,512,975)

17,653,058

11,923,776

61,073,427

335,667,850

54,818,063

280,373,443

-

3,849,811

55,069,592

82,954,050

-

8,240,002

2,091,114

45,344,730
49,755,835

(6,049,441)

60,275,186

731,134,542

1,254,603

60,174,006

8,244,837

14,561,432

144,783,619

66,408,381
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

31 March 2018
Revenue

Investments

Manufacturing

Foodstuff

Services

Total

21,004,873

12,507,453

136,478,225

29,853,291

199,843,842

1,403,562

-

-

15,933

1,419,495

KD

KD

KD

16,651,379

Share of result from associates and
joint venture
Impairment loss on financial assets
available for sale

12,140,475

-

-

-

12,140,475

(1,647,994)

-

-

-

(1,647,994)

Finance costs

(2,620,907)

Profit before taxation and Board of Directors’ remuneration

Depreciation
Amortisation

Total assets

Total liabilities
Goodwill

Intangible assets
23

25,592,242

KD

Result

Interest and other income

2,835,241

KD

12,129,844

57,208,706

(69,311)

(70,996)

(5,273,417)

(2,451,388)

-

(353,037)

(1,901,091)

(3,040,653)

-

(2,620,907)

25,857,204

2,411,208

18,417,734

6,653,736

53,339,882

-

-

(7,865,112)

(5,294,781)

463,591,616

11,592,209

160,262,625

36,222,094

671,668,544

-

3,849,810

52,754,166

1,254,600

57,858,576

94,004,850

1,293,043

-

2,155,799

34,409,108
49,633,723

8,119,976

137,826,977

18,335,542

70,125,064

SHARE BASED PAYMENT

The Parent Company operates an equity settled share based compensation plan and, granted share options to its senior executives. These options are time based options and will vest over a period of 12 – 39 months from the grant date during which
time the employees can exercise the options. If the exercise price is not paid within 39 months from the grant date, the options
vested will lapse. The fair value of stock options granted is amortised over the vesting period.
The following table illustrates the number, weighted average exercise prices and the movement in the stock options during the
year:
2019
Number of
shares
Outstanding at 1 April

Granted during the year

Exercised during the year

Expired / forfeited during the year
Outstanding as at 31 March

Stock options exercisable as at 31
March

4,710,774
1,869,238

(2,235,489)

(22,849)

4,321,674
2,422,091

Weighted
average exercise
price
KD

2018
Number of
shares

0.200

5,341,942

0.218

(2,036,779)

0.267

4,710,774

0.301
0.232

1,518,834
(113,223)

Weighted
average exercise
price
KD

0.177
0.309
0.200
0.172
0.200

1,790,787

The Parent Company recognized an expense of KD 75,807 (2018: KD 51,217) relating to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions during the year under general and administrative expenses.
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the stock options outstanding as at 31 March 2019 is 1.5 years (2018: 1.5
years). The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year was KD 101 thousand (2018: KD 87 thousand). The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was KD 0.176 to 0.301 (2018: KD 0.169 to
KD 0.176).
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SHARE BASED PAYMENT (continued)

The following table lists the inputs to the Black-Scholes option pricing model for the stock options granted during 31 March
2019 and 2018:
Dividend yield (%)

2019

2018

20.01

24.21

4.09

Expected volatility (%)

Risk free interest rate (%)

3.24

2.75

Expected life of option (years)

2.75

3

Stock price on the date of grant (fils)

3

342

Weighted average exercise price of stock options granted (fils)

342

267

200

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the stock options is
indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.
24

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The following table provides the fair value measurement of Group’s financial assets.
Fair value measurement using
31 March 2019

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Quoted equity securities

Unquoted equity securities

Quoted prices in
active markets
(Level 1)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

Total

9,791,312

-

9,791,312

KD

KD

KD

-

213,531,563

213,531,563

Quoted equity securities

2,307,629

-

2,307,629

Debt securities

3,301,915

-

3,301,915

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fund and managed portfolios

9,791,312

213,531,563

-

2,195,922

5,609,544

2,195,922

223,322,875

2,195,922
7,805,466

Fair value measurement using
31 March 2018

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets available for sale
Quoted equity securities

Unquoted equity securities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fund and managed portfolios

Quoted prices in
active markets
(Level 1)
KD

10,562,492

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)
KD

-

Total
KD

10,562,492

-

194,218,848
194,218,848

204,781,340

-

2,209,657

2,209,657

10,562,492

-

2,209,657

194,218,848

2,209,657
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 financial assets.

2019
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Unquoted equities securities

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Fund and managed portfolios

As at 1 April
2018

Net purchases,
(sales), transfers
and settlements

Recognised gain
in other comprehensive income

As at 31 March
2019

194,218,848

378,846

18,933,869

213,531,563

2,209,657

(12,980)

(755)

2,195,922

181,420,220

345,061

12,453,567

194,218,848

KD

KD

KD

KD

2018
Financial assets available for sale
Unquoted equities securities

Fund and managed portfolios

2,366,594

(156,098)

(839)

2,209,657

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of financial assets:			
Unquoted equity securities represent unlisted securities. Unquoted equity securities are valued based on discounted cash
flow (“DCF”) model based on discounting of free cash flows of the company i.e. the cash flow accruing to the company from
operational activities after covering capital expenditure and working capital requirements.
The following table lists the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of unquoted equity securities:

Terminal growth rate (%)

Weighted average cost of capital (%)
GP margin (%)

Revenue growth rate (%)

2019

2018

9.38-9.55

8.81.9.06

2-3

2-3

2

21-70

2

21-70

The table below illustrates the effect on other comprehensive income due to a reasonable change of weighted average cost of
capital and terminal growth rate, with all other variables held constant.
		
Increase of 50 basis points

effect on other comprehensive income

Weighted average cost of capital
Terminal growth rate

2019

2018

(1,060,253)

(969,276)

KD

1,731,458

KD

1,711,390
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BUSINESS COMBINATION

During the year SADAFCO through its wholly-owned subsidiary, SADAFCO Poland, acquired a total stake of 76% in Mlekoma
group on July 2, 2018 through a series of agreements, collectively referred to as Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA”). The
Group considers this transaction as a strategic opportunity to invest in vertical (upward) integration, being a source of the milk
powder, one of the key raw materials.
The consideration paid, the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition and the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets are summarised as follows:
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets identified upon business combination
Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Identifiable net assets

Non-controlling interest arising on business combination
Fair value of net assets acquired
Consideration paid in cash

Contingent consideration payable
Less: net assets acquired

Less: deferred tax on contingent consideration
Goodwill

Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired
Consideration paid in cash

Net cash outflow on acquisition

KD

332,191
946,587

2,353,950
3,855,679
974,710

8,463,117
(1,505,793)
6,957,324

(1,729,882)

5,227,442
6,281,237

556,118

(5,227,442)

(88,351)

1,521,562
332,191

(6,281,237)
(5,949,046)

These consolidated financial statements includes the results of Mlekoma Group from 2 July 2018, as the Group effectively obtained
control of Mlekoma Group from that date. The acquired business contributed revenues of KD 11,883,136 and net loss of KD 560,896
to the Group from 2 July 2018 to 31 March 2019. If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the year, the consolidated
revenue and net profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 would have been KD 15,622,016 and KD 641,954 respectively.
Contingent consideration payable is estimated based on the terms of SPA, the management’s knowledge of the business and
how the current economic environment is likely to impact the business of Mlekoma Group. In the event that certain pre-determined sales targets and net margins are achieved by Mlekoma Group for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020, the Group may be
required to pay the former owners an amount ranging from KD 162,560 to KD 406,400 for each year up to maximum undiscounted amount of KD 406,400 for each year. There is no minimum amount payable under terms of SPA.
The fair value of the contingent consideration of KD 556,118 has been estimated by calculating the present value of the future
expected cash flows at pre-tax discount rate of 3.1%. The pre-determined sales and net margins targets were achieved for
the year 2018. Except for the unwinding of the discount amounting KD 7,315, there as has been no change in the remaining
liability since there has been no changes in the probability of the outcome performance. As of March 31, 2019, the non-current
portion of contingent consideration payable amounts to KD 312,520 and the current portion of contingent consideration payable amounts to KD 243,598 which is included in other payables.
As detailed above, the Group entered into acquisition of Mlekoma Group through SPA, which included clauses whereby the
non-controlling interest equity holders will put their remaining shareholding to the Group at the expiry of the option i.e. fifth
year of the completion date as per the terms of SPA. As per the terms of SPA, it is a binding irrevocable option to acquire from
the non-controlling interest equity holders remaining shareholding. The redemption value is higher of the purchase price as
per SPA or determined by applying earnings multiplier to audited adjusted EBITDA of financial year 2022 of Mlekoma Group.
Accordingly, an amount of KD 1,957,873 was recorded in non-current liabilities in consolidated statement of financial position.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability
and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is
exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, the latter being subdivided into interest rate risk, currency risk and equity
price risk. The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment, technology and industry. They are monitored through the Group’s strategic planning process.
26.1

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation as it falls due and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
The Group has policies and procedures in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counter party. These procedures include the non-concentration of credit risk.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise bank balances and cash, debt
securities included under financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and accrued income and trade and other receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, it represents the current maximum
credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk across financial assets before taking into consideration the
effect of credit risk mitigation.

Bank balances and cash

Financial assets available for sale – Debt instruments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss – Debt instruments
Trade and other receivables
Due from a related party

Gross maximum credit risk exposure before consideration of credit risk
mitigation

2019

2018

114,281,755

81,898,420

3,301,915

-

KD
-

KD

5,074,600

30,909,438

31,965,439

148,493,108

120,188,459

-

1,250,000

The Group’s 5 largest customers account for 44% (2018: 48%) of outstanding trade receivables at 31 March 2019.
The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to its bank balances by only dealing with reputed banks. The Group manages credit risk by setting limits for individual counter-parties, and groups of counter-parties and for geographical and industry
segments. The Group also monitors credit exposures, and continually assesses the creditworthiness of counterparties.
Risk concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

26.1

CREDIT RISK (continued)

Risk concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk (continued)
The Group’s gross maximum exposure to credit risk, before taking into account any collateral held or credit enhancements, can
be analysed by the geographical regions as follows:
Kuwait

GCC and the rest of
the Middle East

Total

Bank balances and short term deposits

66,972,325

47,309,430

114,281,755

Trade and other receivables

15,239,304

15,670,134
62,979,564

148,493,108

Kuwait

GCC and the rest of
the Middle East

Total

38,304,549

43,593,871

81,898,420

5,074,600

-

5,074,600

31 March 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
– Debt instruments
Maximum exposure to credit risk assets

31 March 2018
Bank balances and short term deposits

Financial assets available for sale – debt instruments

KD

3,301,915

85,513,544

KD

KD

KD

-

3,301,915

30,909,438

KD

KD

Trade and other receivables

16,894,444

15,070,995

31,965,439

Maximum exposure to credit risk assets

61,523,593

58,664,866

120,188,459

Due from a related party

1,250,000

-

1,250,000

The Group’s gross maximum exposure to credit risk, before taking into account any collateral held or credit enhancements, can
be analysed by the following industry sectors as:

Banks and financial institutions
Others

2019

2018

117,583,670

86,973,020

148,493,108

120,188,459

KD

30,909,438

KD

33,215,439

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 24 month before 31 March 2019 or 1 April
2018 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. The Group has identified the GDP and the unemployment rate of the countries in which it sells its goods
and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in
these factors.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018 (on adoption of IFRS 9)
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

26.1

CREDIT RISK (continued)

Current

>30 days

30-60
days

-

6%

20,786,084

44,367

31 March 2019

KD

Expected credit loss
rate

Estimated total gross
carrying amount at
default

Expected credit loss

-

91-365
days

>365 days

Total

-

3%

10%

100%

9%

-

2,489,436

1,391,984

2,252,466

26,964,337

KD

-

>30 days

30-60
days

-

9%

16,886,927

845,647

KD

Expected credit loss
rate

Expected credit loss

2,764

61-90
days

Current

1 April 2018

Estimated total gross
carrying amount at
default

KD

-

KD

72,388

Days past due

KD

69,732

Days past due

KD

132,298

KD

2,252,466

KD

2,457,260

61-90
days

91-365
days

>365 days

Total

-

5%

2%

100%

8%

-

3,297,042

4,120,582

1,731,196

26,881,394

KD

-

KD

154,858

KD

66,433

KD

1,973,518

KD

2,267,197

Credit risk from bank balances and cash and short-term deposit is limited because the counterparties are reputable financial
institutions with appropriate credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
The Group considers that its bank balances and cash and short-term deposit have low credit risk based on the external credit
ratings of the counterparties.
26.2

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
instruments. Liquidity risk is managed by the treasury department of the Parent Company. To manage this risk, the Group
periodically assesses the financial viability of customers and invests in bank deposits or other investments that are readily
realisable. The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.
As at 31 March 2019, Group’s debt of KD 1,445,193 (2018: KD 10,915,622) will mature within one year based on the carrying
value of borrowings reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position. However, the management of the Parent Company have reached an understanding with the lender to renew the credit facility on maturity for another year.
The table on the following page summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
repayment obligations.
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26

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

26.2

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The liquidity profile of financial liabilities reflects the projected cash flows which includes future interest payments over the life
of these financial liabilities. The liquidity profile of financial liabilities is as follows:
1 to 3

2019
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
COMMITMENT AND
CONTINGENCIES

2018

Trade and other payables
COMMITMENT AND
CONTINGENCIES
26.3

1 to 5

months

months

Years

Total

1,061,842

5,446,340

73,456,647

79,964,829

55,939,359

11,430,251

73,456,647

140,826,257

1,000,000

1,185,057

14,159,121

16,344,178

1 to 3

3 to 12

1 to 5

KD

54,877,517

months

Borrowings

3 to 12
KD

5,983,911

KD
-

KD

60,861,428

months

Years

Total

13,849,186

74,537,991

89,498,091

10,544,123

51,582,022

74,537,991

136,664,136

3,929

4,168,168

17,527,374

21,699,471

KD

1,110,914

9,433,209

KD

37,732,836

KD
-

KD

47,166,045

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as interest rates,
currency rates and equity prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual investment or its issuer
or factors affecting all investments traded in the market.
Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories, diversification of
assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration, a continuous appraisal of market conditions and trends
and management’s estimate of long and short term changes in fair value.
26.3.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of all future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed by the treasury department of the Parent Company. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches of interest rate repricing of assets and liabilities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group aims to keep a certain portion of its borrowings
at variable rates of interest.
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its variable interest bearing assets and liabilities (time deposits with bank and
borrowings).
The sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the Group’s
profit based on floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2019 and 2018.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income to reasonably possible changes in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant.
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26.3

MARKET RISK (continued)

26.3.1

Interest rate risk (continued)

Increase of 50 basis points

Effect on consolidated statement of income

KD

US Dollar

2019

2018

(21,193)

(75,000)

(312,241)

(307,756)

KD

KD

26.3.2 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Foreign currency risk is managed by the treasury department of the Parent Company on the basis of limits determined by the
Parent Company’s Board of Directors and a continuous assessment of the Group’s open positions and current and expected
exchange rate movements and hedge against foreign investment.
The effect on consolidated statement of income due to change in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities, as a result of
change in currency rate by ±5%, with all other variables held constant is shown below:
Effect on consolidated statement of
income

US Dollar

GCC and the rest of Middle East currencies

2019

2018

356,870

95,818

KD

4,133,292

KD

1,767,560

Effect on other comprehensive
income

US Dollar

GCC and the rest of Middle East currencies

2019

2018

13,724,948

13,642,965

KD

110,619

KD

118,997

26.3.3 Equity price risk
Equity price risk arises from changes in the fair values of equity securities. Equity price risk is managed by the investment
department of the Parent Company mainly through diversification of investments in terms of geographical distribution and
industry concentration. The Group’s quoted securities are listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange and Saudi Stock Exchange.
The effect on consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income (as a result of a change in the fair value of
quoted securities) due to a reasonably possible change (of ±5%) in market indices, with all other variables held constant is as
follows:
Effect on consolidated statement of
income

Saudi stock exchange

2019

2018

115,936

-

KD

KD

Effect on other comprehensive
income

Kuwait stock exchange
Saudi stock exchange

2019

2018

393,361

350,241

KD
-

KD

143,254

122
27

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management policies is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust dividend payout
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
The Group monitors capital using a leverage ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital of the Group. The Group aims to
limit its leverage ratio to a maximum of 50%. The Group includes within net debt, borrowings and trade and other payables,
less bank balances and cash. Total capital represents total equity of the Group.

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Less: Bank balances and cash
Net debt

Total equity

Leverage ratio (%)

2019

2018

60,861,428

47,166,045

(114,281,755)

(83,075,651)

586,350,923

533,841,567

KD

68,427,083
15,006,756
2.56%

KD

78,580,166
42,670,560
7.99%
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How to obtain our 2018-19 Financial
Statements:
Shareholders attending our General Assembly meeting will be provided with a printed copy of the Financial Statements for their approval.
Shareholders can download a PDF copy of the Financial Statements from our company website, or request a printed copy of the Financial
Statements to be sent to them seven days before the advertised date of the General Assembly.
In order for that to be arranged, kindly contact:
Abdulhameed Malhas
Investment and Corporate Communications & Relations Manager
Email: malhas@qpic-kw.com
Nabil F. Fayed
Administrative Affairs Manager
Email: nabil@qpic-kw.com
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P.O. Box 29299, Safat 13153, Kuwait
Tel: +965 2294 3232
Fax: +965 2294 3234
www.qpic-kw.com

